
CITY OF SALISBURY 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

January 24, 2022 6:00 p.m. 
Zoom Video Conferencing (link information provided at end of agenda) 

   Times shown for agenda items are estimates only. 
 

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER 

6:01 p.m. WELCOME/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLEDGE 

6:02 p.m. CITY INVOCATION- Pastor David Thorpe, New Life Seventh-day Adventist Church 

6:03 p.m. PRESENTATION- Sonja Whited 
• Lower Shore Black Professional Alliance

6:09 p.m. ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 

6:10 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA- City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 
• December 13, 2021 Council Meeting Minutes
• Resolution No. 3145- approving the appointment of appoint Paula Turner to the Ethics

Commission for term ending January 2027
• Resolution No. 3146- approving the reappointment of Jeanne Mears to the Friends of

Poplar Hill Mansion Board of Directors  for term ending January 2025
• Approving the Manufacturing Exemption requests for Bay Steel, Inc., DiCarlo Precision 

Instrument, Gardner Sign, Inc., K & L Microwave, Inc., LWRC International, LLC, Mason
Dixon Machining, Inc., Pepsi Bottling Ventures, LLC., Perdue Goods, LLC., Smith’s
Interconnect Microwave Components, Inc., Spartech, LLC., Viscon-Aire Corp. (for years
2017-2019 and 2020)

6:15 p.m. AWARD OF BIDS- Contract Specialist Michael Lowe 
• ITB A-22-112 Citywide Street Striping
• ITB 22-124 Pallet SPC
• ITB A-22-110 Polymer Chemical Supplier

6:25 p.m. RESOLUTIONS- City Administrator Julia Glanz 
• Resolution No. 3147- to establish a Truth, Racial Unity, Transformation & Healing

Advisory Committee 
• Resolution No. 3148- authorizing the Mayor to execute a “settlement participation

and release” resulting from a national settlement negotiated by and between certain
opioid distributors and state and local governments, and further authorizing the
Mayor to enter into an agreement with the State of Maryland providing for direct and
indirect allocation of specified settlement proceeds to the City of Salisbury, Maryland



6:45 p.m. ORDINANCES- City Attorney Ashley Bosche 
 • Ordinance No. 2703- 2nd reading- approving a budget amendment of the City’s Special 

Revenue Fund Budget and to accept and appropriate donated funds from the Draper 
Holdings Charitable Fund/Bless Our Children Campaign for the Santa’s Workshop 
Program 

 • Ordinance No. 2704- 2nd reading- granting three Right-Of-Way and License Agreements    
to Delmarva Power & Light Company across three City owned properties (Parking Lot                
13, Salisbury Parking Garage, and Salisbury City Park) for installation of electric vehicle 
charging station facilities 

 • Ordinance No. 2705- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to appropriate funds for the 
Main Street Masterplan Project 

 • Ordinance No. 2706- 2nd reading- approving an amendment of the FY22 Budget to 
appropriate funds for street resurfacing and concrete repair 

 • Ordinance No. 2707- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to appropriate funds in the 
FY2022 General Fund Budget and amend the authorized positions included in the FY22 
General Fund Budget 

 • Ordinance No. 2708- 2nd reading- reallocation of Main Street Master Plan  
 • Ordinance No. 2709- 1st reading- authorizing the Mayor to appropriate funds for a             

dump truck and mini excavator both previously funded with Federal Recovery Funds 
 • Ordinance No. 2710- 1st reading- authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a 

memorandum of understanding with the University of Maryland to accept funding                   
from the Governor’s Office of Crime Prevention, Youth and Victim Services in the     
amount of $100,000, and to amend the Grant Fund Budget to appropriate these grant 
funds for the continuation of the ‘Exploring Predictive Policing With Machine Learning’ 
project 

 • Ordinance No. 2711- 1st reading- approving a budget amendment of the FY2022   
General Fund Budget and authorizing the Mayor to amend the authorized positions 
included in the FY22 General Fund Budget 

  
7:05 p.m. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7:10 p.m. ADMINISTRATION and COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  
7:15 p.m. ADJOURNMENT 
  
  
  
  

 

Copies of the agenda items are available for review  
the City Clerk’s Office, Room 305 – City/County 
Government Office Building, 410-548-3140 or on                
the City’s website www.salisbury.md. City Council 
Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless 
otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Council’s  
meetings can be held in Closed Session under the 
authority of the Maryland Open Meetings Law, 
Annotated Code of Maryland General Provisions 
Article § 3-305(b) by vote of the City Council.  

                                                                
                                                                                                                        

http://www.salisbury.md/


                                            
 
 
           

                                                NEXT COUNCIL MEETING –February 14, 2022 
                                                  

• Ordinance No. 2709- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to appropriate funds for a dump truck and 
mini excavator both previously funded with Federal Recovery Funds 

• Ordinance No. 2710- 2nd reading- authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a memorandum of 
understanding with the University of Maryland to accept funding from the Governor’s Office of Crime 
Prevention, Youth and Victim Services in the amount of $100,000, and to amend the Grant Fund 
Budget to appropriate these grant funds for the continuation of the ‘Exploring Predictive Policing With 
Machine Learning’ project 

• Ordinance No. 2711- 2nd reading- approving a budget amendment of the FY2022 General Fund Budget 
and authorizing the Mayor to amend the authorized positions included in the FY22 General Fund 
Budget 

 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560 

Meeting ID: 881 8617 2560 
Phone: 1.301.715.8592 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Posted 1/20/22 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560


December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  1 | P a g e  

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 1 
 2 
REGULAR MEETING (COUNCIL CHAMBERS AND ZOOM)   DECEMBER 13, 2021 3 
 4 

PUBLIC OFFICIALS PRESENT 5 
 6 

Council Vice-President Muir Boda    Mayor Jacob R. Day  7 
Councilwoman Angela M. Blake     Councilwoman Michele Gregory 8 
Councilwoman April Jackson 9 

 10 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS ABSENT 11 

 12 
Council President John “Jack” R. Heath 13 

 14 
IN ATTENDANCE 15 

 16 
Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Housing and Homelessness Manager Christine 17 
Chestnutt, Assistant City Clerk Julie English, Executive Administrative Assistant- Mayor’s Office 18 
Jessica Turner,  Water Works Director Cori Cameron, Department of Infrastructure and 19 
Development Director Amanda Pollack, Procurement Director Jennifer Miller, City Attorneys 20 
Ashley Bosche and Michael Sullivan, City Clerk Kimberly Nichols, members of the public 21 
****************************************************************************** 22 
CITY INVOCATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 23 
  24 
The City Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in a hybrid meeting (in person and on Zoom 25 
Conferencing Video) and Council President John R. “Jack” Heath called the meeting to order. 26 
After the recital of the pledge to the flag, he invited Rev. Norman Hancock of St. Thomas 27 
Anglican Church to the podium to provide the invocation.  28 
 29 
PRESENTATION- presented by Mayor Jacob R. Day 30 
 31 
Certificate of Recognition 32 
Mayor Day presented Tim Meagher with the Certificate of Recognition for his dedication to the 33 
Disability Advisory Committee. Mr. Meagher served numerous years as Chair, and his 34 
leadership and commitment has helped encourage others to join.   35 
 36 
Mr. Meagher thanked former mayors Barrie P. Tilghman and James Ireton, Jr. for appointing 37 
and reappointing him to the committee years ago. He thanked Mayor Day and City 38 
Administrator Julia Glanz for their continued dedication to the homeless population, the 39 
disabled population, and vulnerable populations. He also thanked the Julie English and Jessie 40 
Turner for the staff support they provided, and the past and current members of the Disability 41 
Advisory Committee, and Council President Jack Heath for his leadership on the committee in 42 
the past, and Councilwoman Gregory for being the current Council liaison to the committee.    43 
 44 
ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 45 
 46 



December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  2 | P a g e  

Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous (4-0) to approve the 47 
legislative agenda as presented. 48 
 49 
CONSENT AGENDA- presented by  City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 50 
 51 
The consent agenda, consisting of the following items, was unanimously approved (4-0 vote) on 52 
a motion and seconded by Ms. Gregory and Ms. Blake, respectively: 53 
 54 

• November 8, 2021 Council Meeting Minutes 55 
• November 8, 2021 Closed Session Minutes (separate email) 56 
• November 15, 2021 Work Session Minutes 57 
• Resolution No. 3138- approving the appointment of Noah Bressman to the           58 

Sustainability Advisory Committee (Green Team) for term ending November 2024 59 
• Resolution No. 3139- approving the appointment of Megan Outten to the               60 

Sustainability Advisory Committee (Green Team) for term ending November 2024 61 
 62 
PRESENTATION / APPROVAL OF FY21 AUDIT 63 
 64 
Ms. Gregory moved and Ms. Jackson seconded to approve the FY21 Audit Statement and 65 
Financial Statements. 66 
 67 
Finance Director Keith Cordrey turned to report over to Timothy Sawyer, CPA, CGMA of 68 
Barbacane Thornton & Company, who joined via Zoom. The statements were reviewed in depth 69 
during the December 6, 2021 Work Session. The City received unmodified or clean audit 70 
opinions on the audit for FY21. Since the meeting last week, they finished reviews of the financial 71 
statements and made a few cosmetic and formatting changes, and a couple issues with the 72 
footnotes to the statements, so they were not changed at all from last week. 73 
 74 
Mayor Day said that for five consecutive years they have received a clean audit with no 75 
comments. This was never achieved before, and is not achieved by most organizations and small 76 
governments. He said he was particularly proud of Mr. Cordrey and his team in the Finance 77 
Department who made that all possible. 78 
 79 
The audit was unanimously approved. 80 
 81 
AWARD OF BIDS- presented by  Procurement Director Jennifer Miller 82 
 83 
The Award of Bids, consisting of the following items, was unanimously approved (4-0 vote) on a 84 
motion and seconded by Ms. Jackson and Ms. Gregory, respectively. 85 
 86 

• Award of Contracts 
o ITB 22-104 Market Street Riverbank Stabilization                               $324,363.00 
o RFP A-22-104 Hydrogeologust                                                             $300,000.00 (3 yr. est.) 
o ITB A-22-101 Pump Station Wet Well Cleaning                                   $240,000.00 (3 yr. est.)     
o ITB 22-107 WWTP Controls Bldg HVAC Replacement                       $190,500.00 
o RFP 03-14 Skatepark Phase 2a Construction – CO #9                       $142,401.00 

 87 



December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  3 | P a g e  

RESOLUTION- presented by City Administrator Julia Glanz 88 
 89 
•  Resolution No. 3140- authorizing the Mayor to sign a memorandum of understanding 90 

with Eastbound Disc Golf, Inc. regarding the creation of disc golf courses in the vicinity 91 
of the City Park 92 

 93 
Ms. Gregory moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve     94 
Resolution No. 3140.  95 

 96 
ORDINANCES- presented by City Attorney Michael Sullivan 97 
 98 

• Ordinance No. 2695- 2nd reading- authorizing the mayor to enter into a contract with the            99 
Maryland Department of Transportation Transportation Alternatives Program for the             100 
purpose of accepting grant funds in the amount of $597,024, and to approve a budget 101 
amendment to the Grant Fund to appropriate these funds for the Citywide Bike Network 102 
Design Project 103 

 104 
Ms. Blake moved, Ms. Jackson seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance 105 
No. 2695 for second reading. 106 
 107 

• Ordinance No. 2696- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with the 108 
United States Conference of Mayors for the purpose of accepting Police Reform and Racial 109 
Justice Grant Program funds in the amount of 75,000, and to approve a budget amendment 110 
to the Grant Fund to appropriate these funds so that they may be applied to the Salisbury 111 
Police Mental Health Collaborative Partnership 112 

 113 
Ms. Blake moved, Ms. Jackson seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance 114 
No. 2696 for second reading.  115 

 116 
• Ordinance No. 2697- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with the             117 

Somerset County Health Department for the purpose of accepting Emergency Solutions 118 
Grants – Cares Act (ESG-CV2) funds in the amount of 117,600, and to approve a budget 119 
amendment to the Grant Fund to appropriate these funds for a Homeless Services Case 120 
Specialist, Rapid Re-housing Rental Assistance, portable toilets and hand washing stations 121 

 122 
Ms. Blake moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 123 
Ordinance No. 2697 for second reading. 124 

 125 
• Ordinance No. 2699- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to accept additional grant 126 

funding from the Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) Bay Restoration             127 
Fund (BRF) and to approve a budget amendment to the FY 2022 General Fund budget             128 
to appropriate such MDE BRF funds for repair and maintenance projects to be                 129 
completed at the Waste Water Treatment Plant 130 

 131 
Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 132 
Ordinance No. 2699 for second reading. 133 



December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  4 | P a g e  

• Ordinance No. 2700- 1st reading- to grant a property tax credit against the City                   134 
Property Tax imposed on certain real property owned by Salisbury Neighborhood 135 
Housing Services, Inc. 136 

 137 
Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 138 
Ordinance No. 2700 for first reading. 139 
 140 

• Ordinance No. 2701- 1st reading- authorizing the Mayor to appropriate funds in the 141 
FY2022 General Fund Budget, General Capital Projects Fund Budget and the FY22                  142 
Water Sewer Fund budget 143 
 144 
Ms. Blake moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 145 
Ordinance No. 2701 for first reading. 146 
 147 

• Ordinance No. 2702- 1st reading- accepting grant funds from the Governor’s Office of 148 
Crime Prevention, Youth, and Victim Services in the amount of $20,000 under the FY22 149 
Police Recruitment and Retention Program and amending the Grant Fund Budget to 150 
appropriate these grant funds to supplement the cost of gym memberships for           151 
Salisbury Police Officers 152 
 153 
Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 154 
Ordinance No. 2702 for first reading. 155 

 156 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 157 
 158 
The following comments were received from     members of the public via Zoom: 159 
 160 

• Grateful for the bold leadership in the City and the willingness to make it happen. Shelters 161 
don’t break the cycle of homelessness. The Tiny Home Village would give the people the 162 
break they needed to break the cycle and become contributing citizens. 163 

• Was not in favor of the project. As a shelter volunteer, he noticed when weather was warmer 164 
many beds were vacant. He learned they preferred being free and often chose homelessness. 165 
When approached by homeless persons he offered them jobs and only one person out of four 166 
accepted, but did not end up working a half day. Offers to buy them lunch were refused. He 167 
could not support spending hundreds of thousands of dollars of taxpayers’ money on this 168 
and proposed partnering with Salisbury Neighborhood Housing Service, area motels or 169 
apartment buildings to be paid by the City until they got back on their feet, to provide 170 
counseling, and upon became employed, assist with subsidized housing. Costs would be far 171 
less than the Tiny Home Village. This was very near an elementary school, and some could 172 
have problems with children. It was one of the City’s last industrial zoned properties. 173 

• Lived on Ellegood Street since 1963 and was against the Tiny Home Village. Trash blows 174 
from the field onto his front step. The street was only built wide enough for two cars to pass 175 
each other. The school did not have fence around it. 176 

• Found out about the village from a reporter and thought it was a wonderful idea. She had a 177 
lot of questions and wanted to offer possible alternatives. Being about 2,000 feet from the 178 



December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  5 | P a g e  

Pemberton Elementary was a safety concern. She wondered if it was rental or purchase, 179 
transitional or permanent housing, how would the residents be vetted, would there be 180 
security, how would mental health issues be addressed, would there be transportation 181 
provided, and would there be families living in the tiny homes. The nearest restaurants and 182 
grocery store were within walking distance from Ellegood Street, and she was concerned 183 
with safety and property values. She agreed with utilizing area motels and apartment 184 
buildings and proposed finding property already in the City with a dilapidated home that 185 
could be removed and replaced with two tiny homes so that there were not 30 in one 186 
location as she was concerned for their safety. If they were spread out throughout the City 187 
and integrated with the general population, they would be safer and not targets for anyone 188 
wishing to harm them. Every one deserved a roof over their head, food, and safety. Did not 189 
think putting them all on one spot would do them as much service as spreading them 190 
throughout the City. She thanked Mayor Day and the Council. 191 

• Wished to “ditto” what the first speaker said. Started a 501C3 called Hands and Hearts 192 
Ending Homelessness, formerly CESP- Community Emergency Shelter Project. Last year 193 
they had a permanent building rather than shuffling the men from church to church. Many 194 
of them were working and the program provided a respite in order for them to save money 195 
to find a home to live in. Out of the 63 sheltered last year, 20 obtained permanent housing 196 
and 5 voluntarily went into rehab. Tiny Homes Village would allow them to get reoriented 197 
back into society. The homeless were good people who just need our assistance.  198 

• Speaker read a letter from a member of the public who supported the Tiny Homes Village 199 
but could not attend the meeting. People on SSI could not afford to live alone and had to live 200 
in group housing.  201 

• Has worked with the unsheltered for over 15 years. With housing comes stability. Police 202 
receive many more calls for service from the homeless. Housing also provides the dignity 203 
everyone deserves. Many people do not choose to be unsheltered. Had no concerns about 204 
the construction or the location of the Tiny Home Village. 205 

• Speaker has a granddaughter who attends Pemberton Elementary School and had no 206 
concerns for the safety of the children at the school. Its been shown in very successful 207 
programs that the most important thing was to provide a safe place to stay. The health care, 208 
rehab, and other services were great, but housing was most important. 209 

• Speaker supported the Tiny Home Village. Last school year, Wicomico County Public 210 
Schools serviced 437 transitional families. Countless families lived in hotels, motels, cars 211 
and shelters and fear and stereotypes should not keep a community from progressing and 212 
ending homelessness. Most students would rather have a bus drop them off at a community 213 
rather than at a hotel or a shelter. Emergency shelter was just the beginning of ending 214 
homelessness.    215 

• Had no doubt the Tiny Home Village would be successful. 216 
• Having a place where people could sleep was imperative. Before the cold shelter opened, 217 

there were 110 people counted who lived outside, and only 32 could live in the shelter. 218 
There were no options. The homes would provide dignity to the people, a place to sleep and 219 
keep their belongings safe. They would provide a transition from the street, to these 220 
temporary tiny homes, to permanent housing. Almost every single pan handler in the City 221 
was not homeless.  222 

• Another person agreed with the last speaker. 223 
• City Administrator Julia Glanz read a letter of support from a citizen.  224 



December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  6 | P a g e  

• Council received an emailed letter in support of the Tiny Homes Village. Ms. Gregory 225 
moved, Ms. Jackson seconded, and the vote was unanimous to attach the letter to the 226 
minutes. 227 

 228 
ADMINISTRATION AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 229 
 230 
Mayor Day thanked Council for accepting almost $3 million in federal and state money this 231 
evening.  232 
 233 
Ms. Jackson said as a person who has worked with the homeless, they could be structured. All they 234 
needed was leadership and direction. Homeless people want to belong to society, and are not there 235 
because they want to be but rather because of events that have happened in their lives. She 236 
supported the Tiny Home Village. It was needed more now than ever. She thanked everyone who 237 
worked with the homeless. She thanked the members of the Council who went to the Senior 238 
Christmas Dinner. She thanked everyone who was listening and paying attention to what was going 239 
on in Salisbury. 240 
 241 
Ms. Blake reminded people that City Council also represented the homeless. Discrimination of any 242 
kind was usually driven by fear and the unknowing. The Tiny Home Village would become one of 243 
the biggest events to impact Salisbury now and in the coming years. 244 
 245 
Ms. Gregory said she had been very open about her past of being unhoused, and she did not make it 246 
out of that alone. She had people help her, and without that she would not be sitting here today. She 247 
could not explain the impact it would have on people. She could not image the people they help will 248 
be in 20 years. Get your vaccines and boosters and please be careful.  249 
 250 
Mr. Boda thanked everyone for their comments and for staying engaged. The Blood Bank of 251 
Delmarva was very low and in desperate need of blood. Please donate if healthy enough. He hoped 252 
everyone enjoyed the holidays with their families. Next week there would be a Special Meeting for 253 
Resolution No. 2701 for second reading. 254 
 255 
ADJOURNMENT 256 
 257 
With no further business to discuss, the Legislative Agenda adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 258 
 259 
 260 
 261 
 262 
 263 
 264 
 265 
 266 
 267 
 268 
 269 
 270 



December 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  7 | P a g e  

 271 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 272 

CLOSED SESSION 273 
NOVEMBER 15, 2021 274 

 275 
TIME & PLACE: 5:26 p.m., Council Chambers 276 
PURPOSE: Before a contract is awarded or bids are opened, to discuss a matter directly 277 

related to a negotiating strategy or the contents of a bid or proposal, if public 278 
discussion or disclosure would adversely impact the ability of the public body 279 
to participate in the competitive bidding or proposal process. 280 

VOTE TO CLOSE: Unanimous (4-0)  281 
CITATION: Annotated Code of Maryland §3-305(b)(14) 282 
PRESENT: Council President John “Jack” R. Heath, Mayor Jacob R. Day, Council 283 

Vice-President Muir Boda, Councilwoman April Jackson, Councilwoman 284 
Michele Gregory, Procurement Director Jennifer Miller, City Attorney 285 
Michael Sullivan, City Clerk Kim Nichols 286 

ABSENT:  287 
***************************************************************************** 288 
The City Council convened in Work Session at 4:30 p.m. At 5:26 p.m. President Heath called for a 289 
motion to convene in Closed Session as permitted under the Annotated Code of Maryland §3-290 
305(b)(14). Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Jackson seconded, and the vote was unanimous to convene in 291 
Closed Session. 292 
 293 
Council was briefed by Procurement Director Jennifer Miller on the evaluation team’s report of a 294 
proposal for the Mitchell Landing RFP. City Attorney Michael Sullivan fielded Council’s questions 295 
and concerns regarding the residents. 296 
 297 
Council unanimously authorized the award to be placed on the next legislative agenda. 298 
 299 
At 5:42 p.m., Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Jackson seconded, and the vote was unanimous (4-0) to adjourn 300 
the Closed Session.  301 
 302 
Council immediately convened in Open Session and President Heath reported that Council had met 303 
in Closed Session and discussed a proposal.  304 
 305 
The Open Session was then immediately adjourned. 306 
 307 
_______________________________ 308 
City Clerk 309 
 310 
_______________________________ 311 
Council President  312 



 
December 12, 2021 
 
Salisbury City Council 
125 N. Division Street 
Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
RE: Housing for the City’s Unsheltered Population 
 
Dear City Council Members, 
 
As a resident of Salisbury, MD and Wicomico County, I support a tiny house village for 
our unsheltered population. Having worked with this vulnerable population as a 
volunteer and seen firsthand the hardships they experience as well as seeing how hard 
the City’s Housing First department works to assist and provide services for them, even 
going outdoors in severe weather to help our neighbors survive, I believe this is the best 
solution to help support our neighbors so that they can have a better quality of life and 
also become contributing members of our community. 
I know the amount of research and study that has gone into this project to ensure that it 
works to get our neighbors off the street, out of severe weather and into housing where 
they can also receive other services they may need including addiction, recovery and 
mental health services, and job assistance.  
Some of these folks are already working full or part-time jobs, and yet cannot afford 
housing. With rising costs of housing, and wages not rising to match the cost of living, 
this trend could continue. Everyone deserves access to the most fundamental things 
needed for life – food, shelter and heat. Housing our unsheltered population also makes 
EVERYONE in the community safer.  
Anyone complaining about housing our neighbors out of fear or ignorance, or simply out 
of selfishness should be informed and educated about the importance of this project. I 
realize it takes a lot of work to dismantle bigotry, but continuing to have open and 
honest communication will go a long way to help people understand how a tiny house 
village will go a long way to solving homelessness, and we should not make policy 
based on people’s fear and ignorance.  
I believe that as this project unfolds, the results will speak for themselves and most 
residents will see and support the benefits of housing our neighbors. 
Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
City Resident 





RESOLUTION NO. 3145 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is appointed to the Ethics Commission for the term ending as indicated. 4 
 5 
  Name      Term Ending 6 
  Paula Turner     January 2027 7 
   8 
 9 
 10 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 11 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on January ___________, 2022. 12 
 13 
ATTEST: 14 
 15 
 16 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 17 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 18 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 19 
 20 
 21 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 22 
 23 
__________ day of ______, 2022 24 
 25 
 26 
_____________________________ 27 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 28 



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Jacob R. Day, Mayor 

From: Jessie Turner, Administrative Assistant 

Subject: Re-Appointment to the Friends of Poplar Hill Mansion Board of Directors 

Date: January 20, 2022 

The following person has applied for re-appointment to the Friends of Poplar Hill 
Mansion Board of Directors for the term ending as indicated: 
 
   Name    Term Ending 
   Jeanne Mears  January 2025 
 
Attached is the information from Ms. Mears and the resolution necessary for her re-
appointment. If this re-appointment is approved, it will be placed on the next City 
Council agenda for review.  
 
 
Attachments 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  3146 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is re-appointed to the Friends of Poplar Hill Mansion Board of Directors for 4 
the term ending as indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Jeanne Mears     January 2025 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on January ___________, 2022. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2022 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 



































































































































 

 

 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

Department of Procurement 

January 24, 2022 

 
Award of Bid 

1. ITB A-22-112 Citywide Street Striping    $912,333.70 (base bid) 
2. ITB 22-124 Pallet SPC      $226,075 
3. ITB A-22-110 Polymer Chemical Supplier    $210,000 (3yr est.) 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 
 

To:   Mayor and City Council 
From:  Jennifer Miller 

Director of Procurement 
Date:  January 24, 2022 
Subject:  Award of Bids 
 
The Department of Procurement seeks approval from City Council for three procurement awards.  For 
all procurement award recommendations, the City followed required bidding practices by publicly 
posting the solicitations on the City of Salisbury’s Procurement Portal and the State of Maryland’s 
procurement website, eMaryland Marketplace Advantage. The departmental memos provide further 
details. 

  ITB A-22-112 Citywide Street Striping 
• Scope of Work: Provide all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform street traffic 

striping at various locations throughout the City. 
• Bid date: 12/07/21 
• Bid opening: 01/12/22 @ 2:30 p.m. 
• Total bids received: 2 responsive and responsible bids  
• Lowest responsive & responsible bidder recommended for award: 

o Zone Striping (Glassboro, NJ) 
• Cost: $912,333.70 for bid comparison purposes only 

o GL Account(s): 31000-534318 Street Maintenance ($625,000 FY22 Budget) 
• Notes: 

o Indefinite Delivery, Indefinite Quantity contract, with no guarantee of project 
assignment to the firms selected.   

o Initial 1 yr. term with 2 optional 1 yr. renewals 
 
ITB 22-124 Tiny Homes for the Homeless 

• Scope of Work: Furnish, deliver and provide onsite assembly of 25 pallet-shelter homes 
• Authority per Municipal Code 2.32.050.C.5.e Non-Competitive Negotiation/Sole Source 

Procurement 
o “Sole source procurement exists whenever the director (of Procurement) determines 

that there is only one available source for the subject of a procurement contract and 
he/she may award the contract without competition to that source.” 

• Vendor: Pallet SPC (Seattle, WA) 
• Cost: $226,075 
• GL Account(s): 98122-513026-48085 
• Notes:  

o See “Sole Source Justification” information attached 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
ITB A-22-110 Polymer Chemical Supplier 

• Scope of Work: Furnishing and delivery for a 12-month supply of polymer for rotary drum 
thickener and sludge belt dewatering. 

• Bid date: 10/29/21 
• Bid opening: 01/05/22 at 2:30 p.m. 
• Total bids received: 2 
• Lowest responsive & responsible bidder recommended for award: 

o Solenis, LLC (Wilmington, DE) 
• Cost: $210,000.00 (3 yr. estimate) 
• GL Account(s): 86083-546004 WWTP Chemicals 

o Requirements contract; purchase orders placed as needed 
o Initial 1 yr. term with 2 optional 1 yr. renewals 

 
The Department of Procurement hereby requests Council’s approval to award these three contracts to 
the vendors as indicated. 
  
 

 



 
 

 

To: Jennifer Miller, Director of Procurement 
From: Amanda Pollack, Director, Department of Infrastructure & Development 
 William White, Transportation Project Specialist 
Date: January 13, 2022 
Subject:Award of Bid for Contract # A-22-112, Citywide Street Striping  
 
 
Contract No. A-22-112 Citywide Street Striping bids were opened Wednesday, January 12, 2022 at 2:30 
P.M.  Bids were received from three (3) Striping Contractors.  The bid quantities for this contract were 
for reference only and in place only to establish locked-in rates for the term of the contract (one year, 
renewable up to two times); therefore, no actual funds will be awarded at this time.  Purchase Orders 
will be processed, as needed, per assignment to the Contractor.  The bidders and base bids are as 
follows: 

Vendor Base Bid 
Zone Striping, Inc. $ 912,333.70  
Straight Line $ 925,214.00  
Traffic Lines, Inc. $ 1,062,895.00 

 
Straight Line is considered Non-Responsive because they did not provide a bid bond within their 
submittal.  The lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Zone Striping, Inc., successfully completed 
striping work for the City of Salisbury in past years as a sub-contractor and as the responsible party.  
Department of Infrastructure & Development (DID), upon review and evaluation of the bids submitted, 
recommends this contract be awarded to Zone Striping Inc., the lowest bidder. 
 
Funding is provided from multiple accounts.  The City of Salisbury maintains an Annual Citywide Street 
Maintenance account that is utilized to restripe throughout the City in association with resurfacing 
projects.  The funding for this work is a line item in the Adopted budget:  31000-534318 Citywide Street 
Maintenance.  Additionally, the City maintains funds for bike facilities to include striping.  As this 
contract is intended to lock rates in for the specified time frame, no award of fund shall be made at this 
time; as work becomes available individual purchase orders will be issued to the contractor. 
 
Please award contract ITB A-22-112 To Zone Striping, Inc. 
 
 
____________________ 
Amanda Pollack, P. E. 
Director, Department of Infrastructure & Development 



         MEMORANDUM 

 

. 

 

 

To:  Jennifer Miller, Director of Procurement 

From:  Ron Strickler, Director of Housing and Community Development 

Date:  1/14/2022 

Subject: Sole Source Justification, Tiny Home Community Shelters Purchase from Pallet, SLC 

 

 

The Housing and Community Development Department is requesting approval for the procurement of 
twenty-five (25) Shelter 64 units from Pallet SPC, located in Everett, Washington.  Pallet SPC is a social 
purpose corporation with the mission of manufacturing rapidly deployable and durable shelters 
solutions for homelessness and disaster response. Additionally, a large percentage of the Pallet SPC 
team has experienced homelessness and found stability through meaningful employment.    Pallets line 
of shelter facilities are unique and patented (US Patent #10,260,228 B2).   

Pallet, SPC shelter facilities are the only known shelters on the market that can be quickly assembled 
and disassembled with no tools required.  The shelters are produced using 100% inorganic material 
resulting in a product that is mold, mildew and rot resistant which extends the life of the shelter.  Pallet 
SPC staff will arrive on site and fully assemble each unit at our prepared site.  The units are a turn-key 
solution with climate-controlled HVAC, integrated bed platforms, shelving and fire safety equipment.  All 
shelters are manufactured in the United States and are only available through Pallet SPC as the direct 
sole source vendor. 

Please find the attached sole source authorization form and supporting documents for your review and 
determination to approve the purchase from Pallet SPC as a soul source. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Ron Strickler, Jr 
Director, Housing and Community Development 



City of Salisbury Sole Source Justification Form                   Page 1 of 2 
 

    CITY OF SALISBURY           SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE JUSTIFICATION 
     DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT      Questions about this form?     Please call (410) 548-3190 
      

 
SOLE SOURCE: The product or service is unique, meaning that only one vendor, to the best of the requestor’s knowledge and belief, is capable of 
furnishing the product or service. A sole source justification is required for every purchase over the direct buy limit of $2,000.00, and must be 
approved by the Director of Procurement prior to an order being placed. A thorough definition of sole source purchases is on the back of this form. 
 
POLICY PURPOSE: It is the policy of the City of Salisbury to consistently purchase goods and services using full and open competition. The citizens of 
the City of Salisbury are best served when we make sound business decisions based on competitive bids or proposals. Early acquisition planning 
that includes the Department of Procurement can help to avoid delays and to facilitate effective market research. However, there may be instances 
when other than full and open competition may be justified. When a using agency determines that other than full and open competition is 
necessary or in the best interest of the City, appropriate justification for that course of action must be submitted to the Director of Procurement for 
approval in order to waive the competitive bid/proposal process. 
 
Please provide the following information to document the sole source request. Attach additional pages as necessary. 

Explain why the product or service requested is the only one that can satisfy your requirements, and why all alternatives are unacceptable. Be 
specific with regard to unique specifications, features, characteristics, requirements, capabilities, compatibility, and performance.  
 
Pallet SPC patented shelters have unique features that can be quickly assembled with the use of no tools.  They also have the ability to ship 
25 units per individual truck and are fully assembled by the staff from Pallet SPC onsite.  The Shelter 64 from Pallet SPC is turnkey and 
includes heating and air conditioning, bed platforms, electrical junction box only requiring connection and fire safety equipment.   

Explain why this service provider, supplier, or manufacturer is the only practicably available source from which to obtain this product or 
service and describe efforts that were made to verify and confirm this. Obtain and include a letter from the manufacturer or vendor confirming 
claims of sole source provision, and a quote from the manufacturer or distributor.  
 
With timeframe of production, the need for the most cost-effective solution and the information provided above, Pallet, SLC was 
determined to best option for our Homeless Tiny Home Transitional Community.  Additionally, no company produces a product similar to 
Pallet SLC that we have identified. 

Describe your efforts to identify other potential products or sources.  
 
Connect Shelters are designed to help solve the housing/homeless crisis. A multi-unit structure priced out at an estimated $20,000 per 
individual unit.  The shipping price was also higher as a result of the number of individual units (3-4) that could be transported on an 
individual truck.  360 Modular is another company aimed at solving the housing crisis.  Their 8x8 unit was priced just over the cost of Pallet, 
SPC but did not include air-conditioning.  The shipping cost would also be much higher again due to the number of units able to ship per 
truck across the country. 

Will this purchase obligate the City to a particular vendor for future purchases (either in terms of maintenance that only this vendor will be 
able to perform and/or will purchasing this item will cause the City to need more like items in the future)?  
 
Should we find the product sufficient for future expansion, we would continue to utilize Pallet SPC for additional shelter purchases.  In the 
event of a malfunction and/or damage to a unit, the City would be required to purchase replacement materials from Pallet SPC. 

Describe the negotiation efforts that have been made with the supplier to obtain the best possible price. 
 
Pallet SPC has agreed to hold the current price points regardless of cost increases with a signed contract in lieu of 50% down payment. 

Is there a grant or unique funding source that directs a specific source be used? If yes, please attach applicable portion. 
 
N/A 



City of Salisbury Sole Source Justification Form                   Page 2 of 2 
 

STATEMENT OF NEED AND CERTIFICATION 
I am aware that City procurement regulations require procurements to be done competitively whenever practicable. I am requesting a sole source 
procurement based on the following criteria: The statements I have made are complete and accurate, based on my professional judgment and 
investigations. I also certify that no personal advantage, gain, or privilege has (or will) accrue to me or my immediate family through the purchase 
from this vendor, nor is there a conflict of interest in any way with this request.  
 
Submitted by: _______________________________________________________________________ Date: ________1/14/2022_______________ 
           Signature of Individual Requesting Sole Source Purchase Justification     
 
 
Printed Name: ____Ronald Strickler, Jr________________________ Department: Housing and Community Development____________________ 

 
SOLE SOURCE JUSTIFICATION CRITERIA 
 
The following list of criteria should be used in determining if a sole source situation exists: 
 

1. Only one manufacturer makes the item meeting salient specifications; that manufacturer only sells directly or exclusively through one 
regional or national representative. 

2. Item required must be identical to equipment already in use by the end user, to insure compatibility of equipment, and that item is only 
available from one source. 

3. Collaborative project- Supplier is named by the funding source or interagency agreement where the identical equipment is required for 
compatibility and continuity.   

4. Maintenance or repair calls by the original equipment manufacturer are required for a piece of equipment, and the manufacturer does 
not have multiple agents to perform these services. 

5. Replacement or spare parts are required from the original equipment manufacturer, and the manufacturer does not have distributors for 
these parts. 

6. Patented items or copyrighted materials, which are only available from the patent or copyright holder. 
7. Unique expertise, background in recognized field of endeavor, the result of which may depend primarily on the individual’s invention, 

imagination, or talent. Consultant has advanced or specialized knowledge, or expertise gained over an extensive period of time in a 
specialized field of experience. 

8. A Market Survey has been conducted to determine whether other potential sources capable of satisfying the requirement exist. Market 
survey may be conducted by phone or in writing. The extent of the market survey depends on what constitutes a reasonable effort under 
the circumstances to ensure that competition is not feasible. A list of suppliers contacted, along with the reason why each supplier could 
not meet the requirement may justify a sole source purchase. 

 
NOTE: An item being a “sole brand” or a “sole manufacturer” does not automatically qualify as a “sole source.” Many manufacturers sell their 
products through distributors. Therefore, even if a purchase is identified as a valid “sole brand” or “sole manufacturer,” the requestor should 
verify whether the manufacturer has multiple distributors. If multiple distributors for an item exist, competition should be sought among 
those distributors. 

FOR PROCUREMENT USE ONLY 
 
This situation as stated on this form and its attachments: 
 

☐  Constitute a Sole Source Procurement  ☐   Does NOT constitute a Sole Source Procurement  
☐  There is insufficient information for justification  

 
Comments to Requestor: Click here to enter text.  
 
 
 
 
 
           
Signature: ______________________________________________________________________________________ Date: ________________ 
   Jennifer Miller, Director of Procurement 
 



 

Pallet, SPC 

1930 Merrill Creek Pkwy 

Everett, WA 98203 

info@palletshelter.com 

 

Re: Sole Source Procurement  

To Whom it May Concern: 

Our company, Pallet SPC, a social purpose corporation, is a manufacturer of rapidly deployable, durable, 

and scalable shelter solutions for homelessness and disaster response.   

Our unique and patented shelters (US Patent #10,260,228 B2) are the only known shelters on the 

market that can be put together quickly with no tools required and are made 100% of inorganic material 

- making them mold, mildew and rot resistant.  Additionally, our shelters come with optional integrated 

bed platforms, electrical connections, climate control options, shelving, and fire safety equipment, 

making our shelters the only know turn-key solution.  

These shelters are manufactured by us, in our Everett, WA factory.  We currently do not have any 

distributors and remain the sole source for purchasing of our patented shelters.  

 

Very Best, 

 

 

Patrick Diller 

Head of Community Partnerships 



 

 
Pallet SPC – Master Product and Services Agreement 1 of 7 
  

 

S 

2021 MASTER PRODUCT AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

PROJECT Salisbury, MD EFFECTIVE DATE: 12/10/21 

 CUSTOMER: Salisbury, MD PALLET SPC (“PALLET”) 

Contact Name Christine Chestnutt Benjamin Simons 

Mailing Address 207 W. Main St. Suite 102 

Salisbury, MD 21801 

 

1930 Merrill Creek Pkwy, Suite A 

Everett, WA 98203. 

Email Address cchestnutt@salisbury.md benjamin@palletshelter.com 

Telephone 410-334-3031 4255954544 

UBI/Business 

License No. 

 603 622 031 

Federal Tax I.D.  8 2 - 1 5 1 6 7 2 2 
 

PALLET BANKING INFORMATION  

Bank Name: Columbia Bank Account Beneficiary Name: Pallet SPC 

Routing No.:125108272 Account Beneficiary Address: PO Box 77570, Seattle, WA 98177 

Account No.: 7000984919 

Account Type (check one): 

 Business Checking        Personal Checking 

 Business Savings           Personal Savings               

Pallet hereby authorizes Customer to make direct deposits into 

Pallet’s bank account for the Purchase Price, Fees and Prepaid 

Expenses associated with these Terms.  
 

Product Purchase 

and Sale: 

 

Quantity and Type 

of Products 

Purchased: 

 

 

 

  

Purchase Price for 

Products:  

$191,575 

Description of 

Services: 

Pallet shall perform the following Services for the Project: 

Shipping and onsite assembly of shelters and accessories in customer’s desired location. Pallet assembly 

excludes site grading, leveling of shelters, electrical or plumbing connections, and staking of units 

to ground. Customer shall provide 3,000 lbs. forklift with minimum 6 foot forks for delivery and 

installation.  

Payment for 

Services (Fees): 

Shipping: $12,000 

Assembly: $22,500 

Tax n/a 

Payment Terms: 50% upon signing, and the remaining 50% upon shipment of units 

 

Total Purchase 

Price: 

$226,075 

Deposit Due Upon 

Signing: 

$113,037.50 

Terms and 

Conditions: 

This Statement of Work is subject to the Terms and Conditions attached hereto, which are incorporated 

herein by reference.  Any and all documents, notes, memoranda or attachments made pursuant hereto are 

incorporated herein and made a part of this Statement of Work.  
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BC2186B-0F07-4ABB-A87B-4F62917E020F



1/12/22



   

                              
                        
                         
 

MEMORANDUM  

To: City Council 

From: Mayor Jake Day 

Re: Establishment of the Truth, Racial Unity, Transformation & Healing Advisory 

Committee 

Date: January 20, 2022 

 

January 18, 2022 is not only the first day that we will gather following the 35th observation of 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day. It is also the National Day of Racial Healing. I can think of no more 
appropriate day to recognize – as the State of Maryland along with cities and counties from 
across America have – the need for thoughtful, dedicated members of our community to 
analyze the impact of injustices of the past that undoubtedly linger in our present, and 
propose ways to heal, resolve, respond, transform and unite as a diverse community moving 
forward together. Please find the attached resolution for consideration. 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX______3147 1 
 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND TO ESTABLISH A 3 
“TRUTH, RACIAL UNITY,HEALING, & TRANSFORMATION & HEALING 4 
(TRUTHHT) ADVISORY COMMITTEE.”  5 

 6 
WHEREAS,. The City of Salisbury Salisbury, Maryland is a dynamic, multiracial and multicultural 7 

city whose diversity is its greatest asset.  Yet, Salisbury  is still deeply dividedthat remains committed to 8 
embracing racially andracial and cultural diversitylly.   The long history of racial terror lynchings and systemic 9 
racism is felt today. The time has come to finally heal these divisions andAs a minority-majority city, the City 10 
of Salisbury seeks to build a truly racially equitable community that will endure over the long-termsolicit 11 
feedback from community stakeholders in an effort to become a more welcoming place that all are proud to 12 
call “home”; and. 13 
 14 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council recognize that, in the words of Martin Luther King, Jr, 15 
“Injustice anywhere is a threat to justice everywhere,””, and the Mayor and Council stand resolute in their 16 
resolve to mitigate disparities and work to resolve past and present systemic injustices that threaten the fabric 17 
of our society; and.  18 
 19 

WHEREAS,. The City of Salisbury has set goals to achieve racial equity and equality to work toward 20 
healing the wounds borne of past and present oppressive structures and to embrace human dignity for all as 21 
the foundation to achieve  and remains committed in the pursuit of achieving. to heal the wounds born of past 22 
and present oppressive structures and transform the City of Salisbury, MD from being bound to a hierarchy of 23 
human value based on superficial physical characteristics, such as skin color, into one embracing the realization 24 
of human dignity for all as the foundation to achieve aa more perfect union; and .  25 
 26 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council deem it in the best interest of its citizens to enact legislation to 27 
support and advocate for all of our citizens who feel they have been victim to systemic racism: and  28 
 29 

WHEREAS, the City seeks to establish the City of Salisbury Truth, Racial Unity, Transformation, and 30 
Healing , and Transformation Advisory Committee for the advocacy of their citizens on the city, state, and 31 
federal levels. that will provide recommendations to the Mayor concerning ways by which the City may further 32 
its mission of welcoming and embracing Diversity, Equity & Inclusiondiversity by continuing to create a more 33 
just and equitable community; and. 34 
 35 

WHEREAS, the Maryland General Assembly enacted and Governor Larry Hogan signed into law the 36 
establishment of the Maryland Truth and Reconciliation Commission in 2019. 37 
 38 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 39 
MARYLAND, by the Salisbury City Council that the City of  that the City of Salisbury “Truth, Racial 40 
Unity, Transformation & Healing, and Transformation Advisory Committee” is hereby established and will 41 
abide by the following By- Laws:  42 
 43 
 44 
By- Laws of the City of Salisbury Truth, Racial Healing, and Transformation Advisory Committee 45 
 46 

Section 1. Membership 47 
  48 
 49 



2 

a. a. The Truth, Racial Healing, and Transformation Advisory Committee (" the Committee") shall 50 
consist of thirteen ((13) members. The Members shall be authorized and appointed by the Mayor 51 
and approved by the Council. The membership shall include at least seven seventwo (727) 52 
representatives of racial or national minorities;: at least two ( 2) representatives from the LGBTQ+ 53 
community; at least two (2) people under 18 years of ageone (1) high school student; and at least 54 
two ( 2) members of local religious organizations. Members shall serve staggered terms of four (4) 55 
years; seveneight (78) members will serve four (4) year terms beginning and ending in even years, 56 
and sixeven ( 67) members will serve four (4) year terms beginning and ending in odd years. If a 57 
member resigns from the committee in the middle of a term, their replacement will serve the 58 
remaining length of the resigning member' s term. 59 
  60 
 61 

b. The Committee will meet at least six (6) times a year.  62 
 63 
c. At the first meeting a Chair and Vice Chair will be nominated and elected. The Chairperson shall 64 
preside at all meetings and work with the City staff member assigned to support this committee with 65 
setting the agenda. The Vice Chairperson shall preside over the meetings in the event that the 66 
Chairperson is absent.  67 
 68 
d. For any and all formal recommendations made by the Committee to the Mayor, a quorum must be 69 
present. A quorum shall be at least 51% of those members appointed.  70 
 71 
e. Members shall make every effort to attend all meetings. In the event that a member is absent from 72 
three meetings in any calendar year without either a pre- arranged excuse or an emergency, they may 73 
be recommended to the Mayor for removal.  74 

 75 
Section 2. Purpose  76 
 77 
 78 
a. To advise the Mayor about the truth and facts aboutof perceived and realized racial injustices and 79 

systemic racism in extant throughout the CitySalisbury, MD.; 80 
a.  81 

b. To advise the Mayor onoffer policy recommendations to the Mayor policies and programs for 82 
inclusiverelating to actions that the Administration may take in pursuit of racial healing, and to 83 
offer recommendations that the Mayor may convey to by the City of Salisbury and with other levels 84 
of governmentother government bodies throughout including Wicomico County and the State of 85 
Maryland.;  86 

b.  87 
 88 

c. To advise the Mayor on promoted the creation of a Salisbury, MD Archive for Racial and Cultural 89 
Healing (ARCH) that can be used by stakeholders in all sectors;[NS1] 90 

d. Recommend transformational policies and remedies to the Mayor and City Council and ways to 91 
dismantle systemic racism across every part of the City of Salisbury government and our 92 
society;[NS2] 93 

c. To recommend TRHT TRUTH community engagement strategies for the Mayor and City Council; 94 
to the Mayor for consideration. 95 
 96 



3 

d. To advise the Mayor on forming partnerships with cultural and historic institutions to establish a 97 
digital Archive for Cultural and Racial Healing that will document and preserve our journey 98 
through the Racial Healing and Transformation process. 99 
e.  100 

f. To advocate for citizens on the city, state, and federal levels who have been victims of systemic 101 
racism. [NS3] 102 

g.e. To identify and work with the community stakeholders to find moreidentify opportunities to 103 
create a more inclusiinclusiveonary , diverseand diverse community that embraces our common 104 
humanity.   105 

 106 
Section 3. Definitions:   For purposes of this resolution:  107 
 108 
 109 
a. T(a)  [NS4]The term “truth” refers to forensic truth, personal truth and narrative truth. Forensic 110 

truth on what happened needs to be made available in the archives as open data and information, 111 
including testimonies of individuals and communities harmed by historical and systemic racism, in 112 
areas such as discrimination and disparity in law enforcement, access to education, access to health, 113 
access to housing, labor rights, access to financing and others. By creating space for personal truths 114 
to be told, we can better shape the nation's understanding of itself and develop a new narrative that 115 
is inclusive and embraces human dignity and equal value of all.  116 

a.  117 
 118 

b. (b)  The term “racial unity/healing” means to enable sustainable interpersonal and intercommunal 119 
healing. Racial healing mends the wounds of the past to build mutually respectful relationships 120 
across racial and ethnic lines that honor and value each person’s humanity; thus rebuilding trusting 121 
intergenerational and diverse community relationships that better reflect our common humanity 122 
and the founding principles of this nation.  123 

b.  124 
 125 

c. (c)  The term “transformation” means the institutional, societal and cultural reforms, policies, 126 
remedies, and preventative measures needed to overcome the legacy of historical and systemic 127 
racism, inclusion of all groups in just and fair ways in shaping our collective future in order to 128 
create a society based on racial equity. 129 

c.  130 
 131 

d. (d) The term “Truth, Racial Unity, Transformation & HealingTruth, Racial Healing, and 132 
Transformation (TRHT)” means comprehensive, national, regional, local and community-based 133 
approaches to effectuate and bring about transformational remedies and sustainable racial equity, 134 
including meaningful redress for the lasting and latent effects of historic and contemporary racism. 135 
 136 

 T  137 
h. (e)  [NS5]The term “TRHT TRUTH narrative change” means how the people of this country 138 

collectively view themselves, each other, past and present building on testimonies, hearings, 139 
publications, educational programs, cultural and artistic activities, public campaigns and cultural 140 
transmissions aimed to 1) foster empathy with the individuals and communities harmed by 141 
historical and systemic racism, and 2) properly acknowledge community experiences, 142 
strengthening of their rights, honoring their resilience, and encouraging change. The process of 143 
receiving and using testimony must be respectful, inclusive, safe and culturally appropriate. 144 
 145 



4 

 146 
f. “(f)  [NS6]“TRHTTruth, Racial Unity, Transformation & Healing community engagement” practices 147 

which means that TRHT consultations, design and implementation processes are: 1) implemented 148 
with individuals and communities affected by historical and systemic racism at the center of the 149 
process, 2) TRHT community engagement informs the design and implementation narrative 150 
change, racial healing, and the racial equity policies and programs, and 3) TRHT community 151 
engagement partners include but are not limited to community organizations, faith-based 152 
organizations, law enforcement, education and health programs, housing and labor rights groups, 153 
civic groups, media and entertainment, financing, artists and arts organizations, and others.  154 

 155 
Section 4. City Council Liaison  156 
 157 
One member of the City Council shall act as liaison to the Truth, Racial Healing, and Transformation 158 

(TRHT) Advisory Committee and regularly attend meetings. They shall report to the full City Council on any 159 
recommendations made by the Committee and any other pertinent information. 160 
 161 

Section 5. City Staff Liaison  162 
 163 
One member of the Mayor' s Office with assistance from the Solicitor' s Office shall act as liaison to 164 

the Truth, Racial Healing, and Transformation (TRHT) Advisory Committee and regularly attend meetings. 165 
They shall report to the Mayor on any recommendations made by the Committee and any other pertinent 166 
information.  167 
 168 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Salisbury City Council that the Truth, Racial Healing, and 169 
Transformation (THRT) Advisory Committee is created.  170 
 171 

THIS RESOLTHE ABOVE RESOLUTION was duly passedintroduced and read and passed at at a 172 
meeting the regular meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held on xxxxxx ____this 18t24h day of 173 
January, 2022 and is to become effective immediately upon adoption.  174 
 175 
ATTEST:   xxxx   176 
 177 
 178 
 179 
_________________________   _________________________ 180 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 181 
President Salisbury City Council  182 
 183 
APPROVED BY ME THIS:Approved by me, this _______ day of _______________, 2022. 184 
 185 
 186 
 187 
___________________________ 188 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor  189 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

To: City Council 

From: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

Subject: Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Participation and Release form related to a 
national opioid settlement, and to enter into a State-Subdivision agreement related to a national 
opioid settlement 
Date: January, 20, 2022 

 
The City of Salisbury, along with every other community in America, has been faced with tackling 
the opioid epidemic. With the recent national opioid lawsuits against Johnson & Johnson, 
Amerisource Bergen, Cardinal Health, and McKesson, states and local subdivisions have been 
invited to participate in those settlement agreements. Although the City of Salisbury did not initially 
sign on to the lawsuit we have the opportunity to receive a share of the settlement funds to put 
towards our efforts of abating this epidemic.  
 
The resolution before you is twofold. First, it authorizes the Mayor to execute and enter into the 
attached Participation and Release form on behalf of the City of Salisbury. The City hasn’t signed on 
to any national lawsuits and will release ourselves from ever entering into one in the future. Second, 
it authorizes the Mayor to execute and enter into the attached State-Subdivision agreement on behalf 
of the City of Salisbury.  By doing so the City of Salisbury will receive an estimated $285,689.67 
directly that can be used toward a portion of past expenses spent on abating this epidemic and 
future uses. The City is allocated another $514,241,40 in non-competition grant funds. To tap into 
these funds, we will have to submit an abatement plan to the State that meets the National 
settlement guidelines. This funding is contingent upon the number of other jurisdictions in Maryland 
that sign on to this agreement and is subject to change.  
 
The Maryland Municipal League helped to negotiate the settlement agreement that is before us 
today. Our team at Cockey, Brennan, and Maloney have been advocating on our behalf throughout 
this process.  
 
We recommend approving the resolution to allow for the City to continue to abate this epidemic in 
creative ways with key partners in our community.  
 
Attached you will find the following: 

1. National Settlement Participation Form 
2. Maryland State Subdivision Agreement 
3. Exhibit A Estimate  
4. MD Opioid Restitution Fund Bill 

 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 



  RESOLUTION NO. 3148 1 
 2 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 3 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A “SETTLEMENT 4 
PARTICIPATION AND RELEASE” RESULTING FROM A 5 
NATIONAL SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATED BY AND BETWEEN 6 
CERTAIN OPIOID DISTRIBUTORS AND STATE AND LOCAL 7 
GOVERNMENTS, AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE 8 
MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE 9 
OF MARYLAND PROVIDING FOR DIRECT AND INDIRECT 10 
ALLOCATION OF SPECIFIED SETTLEMENT PROCEEDS TO 11 
THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND. 12 

 13 
RECITALS 14 

 15 
 WHEREAS, the people of the State of Maryland and its local governments have been harmed by 16 
an epidemic of opioid addiction and opioid overdose deaths; and 17 
 18 
 WHEREAS, certain pharmaceutical manufacturers, distributors, and dispensers have engaged in 19 
unlawful conduct related to the manufacture, marketing, promotion, distribution, and dispensing of opioids 20 
that has caused these harms; and 21 
 22 
 WHEREAS, many of Maryland’s local governments secured legal representation and filed suit 23 
against certain manufacturers and distributors, seeking to hold them accountable for their unlawful conduct 24 
and to obtain funds to be used to abate the epidemic; and 25 
 26 
 WHEREAS, although the City of Salisbury did not elect to participate in the aforementioned 27 
lawsuits, the settlement negotiations arising from the lawsuits filed against Johnson & Johnson, 28 
Amerisource Bergen, Cardinal Health, and McKesson have resulted in national settlements that invite 29 
participation by all States and many of their local subdivisions (“qualifying subdivisions”), including the 30 
City of Salisbury, regardless of whether such States and/or qualifying subdivisions were parties to the 31 
lawsuits; and 32 
 33 
 WHEREAS, the national settlement agreements can be accessed and reviewed on the national 34 
settlement website found at: https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/; and 35 
  36 
 WHEREAS, the national settlement agreements provide for each State to receive a specified share 37 
of the overall settlement proceeds, and specifically tie the dollar amount allocated to each State to the 38 
percentage of participation by such State and its qualifying subdivisions; and 39 
 40 
 WHEREAS, in order to facilitate full participation in the national settlement agreements, and 41 
thereby maximize recovery from the national settlements for the benefit of their residents, the State of 42 
Maryland and its local governments have negotiated a separate State-Subdivision Agreement to address 43 
the allocation of the settlement funds received by the State of Maryland in the national settlement; and  44 
 45 
 WHEREAS, the State-Subdivision Agreement allocates funds directly and indirectly (through 46 
grant opportunities) to the City of Salisbury, and while this share of the settlement proceeds will not be 47 
sufficient to abate the widespread harm of the epidemic, such funds will nevertheless enable the City of 48 
Salisbury to significantly increase the reach and effectiveness of ongoing abatement efforts; and  49 
 50 

WHEREAS, receipt of such funds by the City of Salisbury is contingent upon 1) execution of and 51 
entry into the Settlement Participation and release of claims arising from the opioid lawsuits and set forth 52 

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


in Exhibit 1; and 2) execution of and entry into the State-Subdivision Agreement set forth in Exhibit 2, 53 
both of which exhibits are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.   54 
 55 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 56 
SALISBURY as follows: 57 
 58 

Section 1.  The Mayor is authorized to execute and enter into the attached Participation and 59 
Release form, or a version substantially similar thereto, on behalf of the City of Salisbury, Maryland. 60 

 61 
Section 2.  The Mayor is authorized to execute and enter into the attached State-Subdivision 62 

Agreement, or a version substantially similar thereto, on behalf of the City of Salisbury, Maryland. 63 
 64 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY 65 

AS FOLLOWS: 66 
 67 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision this 68 

Resolution shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 69 
 70 
Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 71 

paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or 72 
otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to 73 
the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this 74 
Resolution shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable 75 

 76 
Section 5. The Recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of this Resolution 77 

as if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 78 
 79 
 80 
 THIS RESOLUTION was duly passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held 81 
on    , 2022, and is to become effective immediately upon adoption. 82 
 83 
 84 
ATTEST: 85 
 86 
             87 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk    John R. Heath, President 88 
       Salisbury City Council 89 
 90 
APPROVED BY ME THIS: 91 
 92 
  day of    , 2022 93 
 94 
      95 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 96 

 97 



PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 
Thank you for registering your subdivision on the national settlement website and 
for considering participating in the proposed Settlement Agreement with 
McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and AmerisourceBergen 
Corporation (collectively “Settling Distributors”). This virtual envelope contains a 
Participation Form including a release of claims. The Participation Form in this 
envelope must be executed, without alteration, and submitted in order for your 
subdivision to be considered potentially “participating.”   
 
The sign-on period for subdivisions ends on January 2, 2022. On or after that date, 
the states (in consultation with the subdivisions) and the Settling Distributors will 
determine whether the subdivision participation rate is sufficient for the settlement 
to move forward. If the deal moves forward, your release will become effective. If 
it does not, it will not. 
 
As a reminder, if you have not already started your review of the settlement 
documentation, detailed information about the Settlements may be found at: 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/. This national settlement website also 
includes links to information about how the Settlements are being implemented in 
your state and how settlement funds will be allocated within your state, including 
information about, and links to, any applicable allocation agreement or 
legislation. This website will be supplemented as additional documents are created.   
If you have questions, please contact your counsel (if you have counsel on opioids 
matters) or Brian Edmunds at the Maryland Attorney General’s Office at 410-576-
6578 or bedmunds@oag.state.md.us.   
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 489B0717-BD1D-4812-A221-B8BBCE401CCF



1

Settlement Participation Form

Governmental Entity: Salisbury city State: MD
Authorized Signatory: /officialname/
Address 1: /address1/
Address 2: /address2/
City, State, Zip: /cit/                                          /state/                      /zi/
Phone: /Phone/
Email: /email/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in 
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement
Agreement dated July 21, 2021 (“Distributor Settlement”), and acting through the 
undersigned authorized official, hereby elects to participate in the Distributor Settlement, 
release all Released Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Distributor Settlement, 
understands that all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined 
therein, and agrees that by this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in 
the Distributor Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein.

2. The Governmental Entity shall, within 14 days of the Reference Date and prior to the 
filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any Released Claims that it has
filed.

3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Distributor Settlement 
pertaining to Subdivisions as defined therein.

4. By agreeing to the terms of the Distributor Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable,
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the 
Distributor Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.

6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 
as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Distributor 
Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Distributor Settlement as 
provided therein.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 489B0717-BD1D-4812-A221-B8BBCE401CCF



2

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for 
all purposes in the Distributor Settlement, including but not limited to all provisions of 
Part XI, and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, 
districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official 
capacity elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or 
other entity claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified 
in the definition of Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. 
As a Releasor, the Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and 
irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be 
brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released 
Claims against any Released Entity in any forum whatsoever. The releases provided for 
in the Distributor Settlement are intended by the Parties to be broad and shall be 
interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any 
liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the 
power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Distributor Settlement shall be 
a complete bar to any Released Claim.

9. The Governmental Entity hereby takes on all rights and obligations of a Participating 
Subdivision as set forth in the Distributor Settlement.

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the Distributor Settlement, each 
Governmental Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and  
all provisions, rights, and benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of 
the United States or other jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is 
similar, comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the California Civil Code, which 
reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or 
her favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her,
would have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or 
released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it 
knows, believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each 
Governmental Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, 
releases and discharges, upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may
exist as of such date but which Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether 
through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and 
which, if known, would materially affect the Governmental Entities’ decision to 
participate in the Distributor Settlement.

11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Distributor Settlement, 
to which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Election and Release is 
interpreted differently from the Distributor Settlement in any respect, the Distributor 
Settlement controls.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 489B0717-BD1D-4812-A221-B8BBCE401CCF



3

I swear under penalty of perjury that I have all necessary power and authorization to execute 
this Election and Release on behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1/                                                

Name: /name_1/                                                  

Title: /title_1/                                                    

Date: /date_1/                                                    

DocuSign Envelope ID: 489B0717-BD1D-4812-A221-B8BBCE401CCF











1 | P a g e  
 

STATE-SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN THE STATE OF MARYLAND AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

ON PROCEEDS RELATING TO THE SETTLEMENT OF OPIOIDS LITIGATION 
 

 

Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………2 

 

Statement of Agreement…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..3 

 

 Section I  Definitions………………………………………………………………………………………………………3 

 Section II  General Terms……………………………………………………………………………………………….5 

 Section III  Use of Settlement Proceeds………………………………………………………………………….6 

 Section IV  Deposit, Distribution, and Allocation of Settlement Payments……………………..6 

 Section V   Calculation of Subdivision Allocation Percentages………………………………………..9 

 Section VI   Audit of Settlement Proceeds and Enforcement………………………………………… 9  

Signature Pages 

Exhibits 

 

 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

Introduction 

WHEREAS, the State of Maryland, its local governments, and its people have been harmed 

by an epidemic of opioid addiction and overdose deaths, as well as by the myriad costs to the 

health, economic well-being, and welfare of all Maryland residents caused by the epidemic; and 

WHEREAS, certain pharmaceutical manufacturers, distributors, and dispensers have 

engaged in unlawful conduct related to the manufacture, marketing, promotion, distribution, 

and dispensing of opioids that has caused these harms; and 

WHEREAS, the State and many of its local governments have engaged in investigations, 

litigation, and settlement negotiations involving certain manufacturers and distributors seeking 

to hold them accountable for their unlawful conduct and to obtain funds to be used to abate the 

epidemic; and 

WHEREAS, the settlement negotiations with Johnson & Johnson, Amerisource Bergen, 

Cardinal Health, and McKesson have resulted in national settlements that invite participation by 

States and their local subdivisions, according to the terms of the agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the State and its local governments recognize that their share of the 

settlement proceeds will not be sufficient to abate the widespread harm of the epidemic, but 

that the funds will enable them to increase significantly the reach and effectiveness of their 

ongoing abatement efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the State and its local governments recognize that obtaining their full share of 

the settlement proceeds is contingent upon full participation in the national settlements by the 

State and all its qualifying subdivisions; and 

WHEREAS, this State-Subdivision Agreement will facilitate compliance with the National 

Settlement Agreements on the part of the State and its local governments; and 

WHEREAS, the National Settlement Agreements set default intrastate allocation formulas 

unless the State and its local governments enter state-specific State-Subdivision Agreements 

regarding the allocation and distribution of their shares of settlement proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, distribution of the settlement proceeds may also be governed by Section 7-

331 of the State Finance and Procurement Article Section, in the absence of a State-Subdivision 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, to maximize recovery from the national settlements for the benefit of the 

residents of Maryland, it is necessary and appropriate to reach agreement among the State and 

its local governments as to the allocation and distribution of their shares of the settlement funds, 

The Parties hereto agree as follows: 

  



3 | P a g e  
 

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT 

Section I Definitions 

All terms used in this State-Subdivision Agreement shall have the meanings defined by the 

National Settlement Agreement or defined below unless explicitly stated otherwise.  The 

following additional terms are defined for purposes of this State-Subdivision Agreement: 

(a) "Abatement Plan” shall mean a plan created by any Subdivision or Consortium for the 
expenditure of Settlement Proceeds through Targeted Abatement Grants for Permitted 
Uses.   

(b) “Additional Restitution Payments” shall mean the portion of the “Additional Restitution 
Amount” under the National Settlement Agreement that is allocated to the State of 
Maryland. 

(c) “Agreement” shall mean this State-Subdivision Agreement. 

(d) “Consortium” shall mean any group of Subdivisions that wishes to pool resources with 
one or more other Subdivisions for purposes of coordinated Future Opioid Remediation 
through Permitted Uses.  There shall be no requirement that any Subdivision participate 
in a Consortium, but voluntary coordination among subdivisions, especially where 
economies of scale would be fostered by such coordination, is strongly encouraged.  The 
Secretary shall assist in the development of an Abatement Plan created by Subdivisions 
for any consortium. 

(e) “Consortium Abatement Fund” shall mean a special fund voluntarily created by a 
Consortium and its participating Subdivisions for any Consortium formed under this 
Agreement to receive Settlement Proceeds or other funding. 

(f) “County” shall mean any county of the State and shall include Baltimore City. 

(g) “Executive Director” shall mean the Executive Director of the Opioid Operational 
Command Center. 

(h) “Permitted Use” shall mean any use permitted by the National Settlement Agreement and 
Section 7-331(f) of the State Finance and Procurement Article, as amended from time to 
time.  Except as specifically provided otherwise by this Agreement, Permitted Uses shall 
be limited to Future Opioid Remediation. 

(i) “Qualifying Exhibit G Subdivision” shall mean a subdivision listed on Exhibit G of the 
National Settlement Agreement that is not a Special District. 

(j) “Qualifying Non-Litigating Subdivision” shall mean a Subdivision other than a Qualifying 
Exhibit G Subdivision or Special District that has established a Local Abatement Fund in 
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement.  



4 | P a g e  
 

(k) “Qualifying Charter County” shall mean Baltimore City and Anne Arundel, Baltimore, 
Frederick, Harford, Howard, Montgomery, and Prince George’s Counties.  

(l) “Local Abatement Fund” shall mean a separate, special revenue fund created by a 
Subdivision receiving funds under Section IV of this Agreement.  

(m) “Municipal Subdivision” shall mean any incorporated city or town in Maryland other than 
Baltimore City. 

(n) “National Settlement Agreement” shall mean the [Janssen Settlement Agreement/ 
Distributors Settlement Agreement] of [Date], which shall be incorporated in a consent 
order incorporating the National Settlement Agreement and this State-Subdivision 
Agreement. 

(o) “Opioid Operational Command Center” shall mean the entity established by Governor 
Hogan’s Executive Order 01.01.2017.01 to oversee the State’s response to the opioid 
crisis and to build upon community-based strategies by increasing collaboration between 
state and local public health, human services, education, and public safety entities. 

(p) “Opioid Restitution Fund” shall mean the Opioid Restitution Fund established by State 
Finance and Procurement Article Section 7-331(a), as amended from time to time. 

(q) “Parties” shall mean the State of Maryland and the Subdivisions joining this agreement. 

(r) “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of Health. 

(s) “Settlement Payments” shall mean settlement payments made to the State or its 
Subdivisions pursuant to the National Settlement Agreement. 

(t) “Settlement Proceeds” shall mean the amounts of Settlement Payments allocated or 
distributed to the State or to a Subdivision under this Agreement. 

(u) “State” shall mean the government of the State of Maryland, without inclusion of 
Subdivision governments. 

(v) “Targeted Abatement Subfund” shall mean a subfund of the Opioid Restitution Fund 

created for the purpose of holding and distributing payments received pursuant to the 

National Settlement Agreement for Targeted Abatement Spending. 

 

Section II General Terms 

 

(a) This State-Subdivision Agreement shall be dated January 21, 2022 and shall be effective 

on that date for all purposes under the National Settlement Agreement.  Subdivisions 

that return Subdivision Settlement Participation Forms under the National Settlement 

Agreement shall be deemed to consent to this Agreement.   



5 | P a g e  
 

(b) This State-Subdivision Agreement shall be subject to the requirements of the National 

Settlement Agreement, as well as applicable law, and unless explicitly provided 

otherwise, the National Settlement Agreement governs over any inconsistent provision 

of this State-Subdivision Agreement.  The Parties shall also commit jointly to effectuate 

the goals of this Agreement through legislation amending State Finance and 

Procurement Article Section 7-331 to conform with this Agreement’s distribution 

requirements. 

 

(b) This Agreement shall not create rights in any Non-Participating Subdivision to Settlement 

Proceeds of any kind, provided that the State may, consistent with the National 

Settlement Agreement, establish programs using Settlement Proceeds that benefit the 

residents of any Non-Participating Subdivision. 

 

(c) This Agreement shall apply to Settlement Payments under the National Settlement 

Agreement and shall not apply to funding from any other source, provided that nothing 

in this Agreement shall prohibit the State or any of its Subdivisions from voluntarily 

supplementing Settlement Proceeds from the National Settlement Agreement with 

funding derived from any other authorized source. 

 

(d) Any power conferred by this Agreement upon the Secretary may be delegated by the 

Governor to the Executive Director or a similar official created by future executive order. 

 

(e) If the National Settlement Agreement to which this State-Subdivision Agreement applies 

fails to go forward, this State-Subdivision Agreement shall be void and create no rights or 

duties among the Parties hereto with respect to that National Settlement Agreement.  To 

the extent a National Settlement Agreement to which this State-Subdivision Agreement 

applies goes forward, this State-Subdivision Agreement will go forward with respect to 

that National Settlement Agreement. 

 

(f) This State-Subdivision Agreement shall create no rights in third parties, including parties 

to the National Settlement Agreement who are not also Parties to this State-Subdivision 

Agreement. 

 

(g) Within 60 days of the date of this Agreement, each Subdivision receiving payments under 

the National Settlement Agreement and this Agreement shall establish a Local Abatement 

Fund consistent with State law for the purpose of receiving and spending direct payments 

made to local subdivisions by the Settlement Administrator to Qualifying Exhibit G 

Subdivisions under the National Settlement Agreement and this Agreement. 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

(h) The State shall maintain in the Opioids Restitution Fund a Targeted Abatement Subfund 

for the purpose of spending money received by the State under the National Settlement 

Agreement for Targeted Abatement Grants to Subdivisions of the State. 

 

Section III Use Of Settlement Proceeds 

 

(a) Except as provided under subsection (b), all expenditures of Settlement Proceeds by the 

State or its subdivisions shall be for Permitted Uses that serve the purpose of Future 

Opioid Remediation as set forth in the National Settlement Agreement.   

 

(b) Notwithstanding subsection A, any Subdivision receiving settlement proceeds pursuant 

to Section IV(a)(3) of this Agreement may use up to 15 percent to pay for past Opioid 

Remediation consistent with Permitted Uses, subject to the accounting requirements of 

the National Settlement Agreement and the provisions of Section VI(a) of this Agreement. 

 

(c) The Secretary shall have the discretion to supplement grants to Qualifying Exhibit G 

Subdivisions for Permitted Uses with additional funding derived from Settlement 

Proceeds whose expenditure is committed to the discretion of the Secretary by this 

Agreement, or from any other authorized source provided in the budget or by 

appropriation; provided that the Subdivision’s use of Settlement Proceeds and other 

funds is consistent with State policies and any statewide abatement plan adopted by the 

Secretary for the purpose of coordinated future opioid remediation. 

 

Section IV Deposit, Distribution, And Allocation of Settlement Payments 

 

(a) Consistent with the National Settlement Agreement and Section 7-331 of the State 

Finance and Procurement Article, the Settlement Fund Administrator shall allocate and 

distribute Settlement Payments to the State and its Subdivisions under the National 

Settlement Agreement as follows: 

 

(1) State Allocation.  The Settlement Fund Administrator shall allocate all Additional 

Restitution Payments, and 15 percent of all Annual Payments, to the State Fund for 

distribution to the State.  Such payments shall be deposited in the Opioid Restitution 

Fund and expended on Permitted Uses as determined by the State. 

 

(2) Targeted Abatement Subfund.  The Settlement Fund Administrator shall allocate 60 

percent of all Annual Payments to the Abatement Accounts Fund established by the 

National Settlement Agreement for distribution to the State.  Such payments shall be 

deposited in the Targeted Abatement Subfund and expended for Permitted Uses as 

follows: 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

(A) State Discretionary Abatement Fund.  25 percent of the 60 percent (15 percent 

of all Annual Payments) for Permitted Uses as determined by the Secretary to best 

serve the purpose of Future Opioid Remediation in the State, provided that the 

Secretary shall establish a program that enables Qualifying Non-Litigating 

Subdivisions to apply for grants and may, in the Secretary’s discretion, make 

grants from this amount to participating Qualifying Non-Litigating Subdivisions.  In 

determining whether to make a grant under this subsection, the Secretary may 

consider:  (i) whether a grant is consistent with the overall needs for abatement 

in the community and in Maryland; (ii) the experience of the Subdivision in 

providing programs for opioids remediation and for the public health generally; 

(iii) the feasibility of the program to be funded by the grant; (iv) the consistency 

of the program with State policy and its level of integration with State and County 

programs for abatement and the discussions required by Section IV(b) of this 

Agreement; and (v) other needs for Future Opioids Remediation across the State; 

provided that, nothing in this subsection shall require the Secretary to make any 

grant or restrict the Secretary’s discretion in utilizing funds deposited under this 

Subsection IV(a)(2)(A) as the Secretary believes will best serve the needs of 

Maryland residents and communities for opioids remediation.  A Qualifying Non-

Litigating Subdivision that does not apply for a grant in any given year may apply 

in future years, but only for Settlement Payments applicable to the years in which 

the Subdivision applies. 

 

(B) Targeted Abatement Grants.  75 percent of the 60 percent (45 percent of all 

Annual Payments) for non-competitive Targeted Abatement Grants to Qualifying 

Exhibit G Subdivisions for Permitted Uses in accordance with each Subdivision’s 

Subdivision Allocation Percentage as calculated pursuant to Section V of this 

Agreement.  These non-competitive grants shall be made:  (i) to the Local 

Abatement Funds of participating Qualifying Charter Counties within 30 days of 

the later of the deposit of Annual Payments in the Targeted Abatement Subfund 

or a Qualifying Charter County’s establishment of a Local Abatement Fund 

pursuant to this Agreement; (ii) to other participating Qualifying Exhibit G 

Subdivisions upon the Secretary’s approval of a grant application demonstrating 

that a Local Abatement Fund for deposit of Settlement Proceeds has been 

established, that the Settlement Proceeds will be used under a Local Abatement 

Plan that ensures the use of funds for Future Opioids Remediation through a 

Permitted Use, and that the Qualifying Exhibit G Subdivision has the capability of 

carrying out the specific program for which the grant is to be made.  A grant 

application under this subparagraph (ii) that meets these requirements must be 

approved by the Secretary.  A Subdivision receiving a grant under this 

subparagraph (ii) must renew it every five years.  The Settlement Proceeds of any 



8 | P a g e  
 

Qualifying Exhibit G Municipal Subdivision that does not apply for a grant shall 

revert to the County in which the Subdivision is located. 

 

(3) Local Allocation.  The Settlement Fund Administrator shall allocate 25 percent of all 

Annual Payments to the Subdivision Fund for distribution directly to the Local 

Abatement Funds established by participating Qualifying Exhibit G Subdivisions in 

accordance with each subdivision’s Subdivision Allocation Percentage as calculated 

pursuant to Section V of this Agreement, provided that no more than 60 percent of 

these local allocation funds (15 percent of all Base Payments and Incentive Payments 

overall) may be used for purposes other than Future Opioid Remediation. 

 

(b) It is the intention of this Agreement to promote, as much as reasonably practicable, the 

efficient, effective, and consistent pursuit of coordinated statewide Future Opioid 

Remediation policies and programs at all levels of government.  To that end, each year, 

no later than 180 days before an Annual Payment is due, the Secretary shall provide non-

binding recommendations for County and Municipal Subdivision expenditure of 

Settlement Proceeds that, in the Secretary’s judgment, will serve an efficient and effective 

program of Future Opioid Remediation across Maryland.  Following the Secretary’s 

recommendations, and no later than 120 days before an Annual Payment is due, a County 

receiving Settlement Proceeds under this Agreement shall meet with representatives 

from the Municipal Subdivisions that are located within the County and that receive 

Settlement Proceeds under this Agreement, plus any other Municipal Subdivisions that 

express interest in a meeting and are located within the County, together with the 

Secretary or the Secretary’s designee, to discuss their respective plans for the use of 

Settlement Proceeds.  The County and the Municipal Subdivisions within it, with the 

participation of the Secretary or the Secretary’s designee, are encouraged to further 

engage in discussions as reasonably necessary to foster appropriate coordination. In the 

event of disagreement, the ultimate use of specific Settlement Proceeds shall be 

determined by the Subdivision that has been granted them in a manner consistent with 

the other provisions of this Agreement and applicable law.  

 

 

 

Section V Calculation of Subdivision Allocation Percentages 

 

(a) When Annual Payments are to be granted or distributed to the Qualifying Exhibit G 

Subdivisions under the National Settlement Agreement or this Agreement, the Secretary 

shall determine each Qualifying Exhibit G Subdivision’s Subdivision Allocation Percentage 

according to the following formulas: 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

(1) for a County, according to a formula that gives: (A) 25 percent weight to the 

population of the County as of July 1, 2019, according to the Census Bureau’s official 

population estimates; and (B) 75 percent weight to the results of application of the 

formula used to derive Exhibit G to the National Settlement Agreement.  A county’s 

Subdivision Allocation Percentage shall be reduced by the amount of the Subdivision 

Allocation Percentage, calculated under subsection V(a)(2), of any Municipal 

Subdivision that is a Qualifying Exhibit G Subdivision within it.  

 

(2) for a Municipal Subdivision, according to a formula that gives: (A) 25 percent weight 
to the population of the Municipal Subdivision as of July 1, 2019, according to the 
Census Bureau’s official population estimates; and (B) 75 percent weight to the results 
of application of the formula used to derive Exhibit G to the National Settlement 
Agreement. 

 
Section VI. Audit of Settlement Proceeds and Enforcement 

(a) The Secretary shall establish procedures for the audit of Subdivisions receiving Settlement 

Proceeds under the National Settlement Agreement and this Agreement consistent with 

the procedures for other grants to Subdivisions administered by the Secretary.  The 

auditing procedures shall ensure that the requirements of the National Settlement 

Agreement and this Agreement concerning the use of Settlement Proceeds for Permitted 

Uses and for Opioids Remediation are followed.  

 

(b) If the Secretary believes that the provisions of the National Settlement Agreement or this 

Agreement are being violated, the Secretary shall report the violation to the Attorney 

General who may enforce the Consent Judgment incorporating the National Settlement 

Agreement and this Agreement against any Subdivision. 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit A:
Estimated Distributions by Subdivision -- 100% Participation

County Qualifying Subdivision Share of 25% 
Subdivision Fund

(Total: $120,403,037.92)

Share of 45% 
Abatement Fund 

(Total: $216,725,468.26)

Total Maximum

Allegany
Allegany County, 
Maryland $1,667,944.92 $3,002,300.85 $4,670,245.77

Allegany
Cumberland City, 
Maryland $242,946.63 $437,303.93 $680,250.56

Allegany Frostburg City, Maryland $59,925.37 $107,865.67 $167,791.04

Anne Arundel
Anne Arundel County, 
Maryland $11,344,135.90 $20,419,444.62 $31,763,580.52

Anne Arundel Annapolis City, Maryland $413,207.15 $743,772.87 $1,156,980.02

Baltimore City Baltimore City, Maryland $21,915,719.43 $39,448,294.98 $61,364,014.41

Baltimore County
Baltimore County, 
Maryland $20,153,941.69 $36,277,095.04 $56,431,036.73

Calvert Calvert County, Maryland $1,991,145.60 $3,584,062.08 $5,575,207.68

Caroline
Caroline County, 
Maryland $695,949.18 $1,252,708.53 $1,948,657.72

Carroll Carroll County, Maryland $3,419,321.97 $6,154,779.54 $9,574,101.50

Carroll
Westminster City, 
Maryland $132,547.37 $238,585.27 $371,132.64

Cecil Cecil County, Maryland $3,816,607.10 $6,869,892.79 $10,686,499.89

Cecil Charlestown, Maryland $7,215.09 $12,987.15 $20,202.24

Cecil Elkton Town, Maryland $157,617.34 $283,711.21 $441,328.55

Cecil
North East Town, 
Maryland $34,383.46 $61,890.22 $96,273.68

Cecil
Perryville Town, 
Maryland $38,343.07 $69,017.52 $107,360.59

Charles Charles County, Maryland $2,588,488.86 $4,659,279.94 $7,247,768.80

ASSUMPTIONS: 1) Estimated  shares from both Distributors' and J&J settlements, assuming 100% participation by 
subdivisions; 2) counties with subdivisions that will also receive direct distributions have had their total population 
discounted by the populations of those subdivisions to avoid double counting FORMULA: 25% of $ Allocation based 
on population + 75% of $ Allocation based on PEC formula

1



Exhibit A:
Estimated Distributions by Subdivision -- 100% Participation

County Qualifying Subdivision Share of 25% 
Subdivision Fund

(Total: $120,403,037.92)

Share of 45% 
Abatement Fund 

(Total: $216,725,468.26)

Total Maximum

Dorchester
Dorchester County, 
Maryland $453,447.22 $816,204.99 $1,269,652.20

Dorchester Cambridge City, Maryland $78,807.79 $141,854.02 $220,661.80

Dorchester Vienna Town, Maryland $1,492.20 $2,685.96 $4,178.15

Frederick
Frederick County, 
Maryland $4,089,287.37 $7,360,717.26 $11,450,004.63

Frederick Frederick City, Maryland $497,937.52 $896,287.54 $1,394,225.07

Garrett Garrett County, Maryland $437,780.15 $788,004.26 $1,225,784.41

Garrett
Grantsville Town, 
Maryland $4,013.13 $7,223.64 $11,236.77

Garrett
Mountain Lake Park 
Town, Maryland $10,506.54 $18,911.76 $29,418.30

Garrett Oakland Town, Maryland $10,782.32 $19,408.17 $30,190.49

Harford
Harford County, 
Maryland $5,763,815.54 $10,374,867.97 $16,138,683.51

Harford Aberdeen City, Maryland $113,421.17 $204,158.11 $317,579.28

Harford Bel Air Town, Maryland $79,491.59 $143,084.86 $222,576.45

Harford
Havre De Grace City, 
Maryland $111,153.38 $200,076.09 $311,229.47

Howard
Howard County, 
Maryland $4,555,243.23 $8,199,437.82 $12,754,681.05

Kent Kent County, Maryland $519,662.47 $935,392.45 $1,455,054.92

Montgomery
Montgomery County, 
Maryland $12,193,120.45 $21,947,616.82 $34,140,737.27

Montgomery
Gaithersburg City, 
Maryland $360,520.42 $648,936.76 $1,009,457.18

Montgomery Rockville City, Maryland $394,136.50 $709,445.71 $1,103,582.21

Montgomery
Takoma Park City, 
Maryland $105,913.59 $190,644.45 $296,558.04

2



Exhibit A:
Estimated Distributions by Subdivision -- 100% Participation

County Qualifying Subdivision Share of 25% 
Subdivision Fund

(Total: $120,403,037.92)

Share of 45% 
Abatement Fund 

(Total: $216,725,468.26)

Total Maximum

Prince George's
Prince Georges County, 
Maryland $10,075,953.46 $18,136,716.22 $28,212,669.68

Prince George's Bowie City, Maryland $315,750.86 $568,351.54 $884,102.39

Prince George's
College Park City, 
Maryland $164,681.30 $296,426.35 $461,107.65

Prince George's Cottage City, Maryland $7,939.76 $14,291.56 $22,231.32

Prince George's
Forest Heights Town, 
Maryland $13,520.91 $24,337.64 $37,858.55

Prince George's Greenbelt City, Maryland $149,035.93 $268,264.67 $417,300.59

Prince George's Hyattsville City, Maryland $102,267.60 $184,081.68 $286,349.28

Prince George's Laurel City, Maryland $154,751.18 $278,552.13 $433,303.31

Prince George's
New Carrollton City, 
Maryland $70,031.51 $126,056.72 $196,088.22

Prince George's
North Brentwood Town, 
Maryland $2,633.93 $4,741.07 $7,374.99

Prince George's
Seat Pleasant City, 
Maryland $26,237.83 $47,228.09 $73,465.92

Prince George's
Upper Marlboro Town, 
Maryland $3,994.47 $7,190.04 $11,184.50

Queen Anne's
Queen Annes County, 
Maryland $917,434.01 $1,651,381.21 $2,568,815.22

Somerset
Somerset County, 
Maryland $477,472.14 $859,449.85 $1,336,921.99

St. Mary's
St Mary's County, 
Maryland $1,800,900.67 $3,241,621.21 $5,042,521.89

Talbot Talbot County, Maryland $544,311.42 $979,760.56 $1,524,071.98

Talbot Easton Town, Maryland $139,903.25 $251,825.85 $391,729.11

Washington
Washington County, 
Maryland $3,304,318.50 $5,947,773.29 $9,252,091.79

Washington
Hagerstown City, 
Maryland $364,845.88 $656,722.59 $1,021,568.47

3



Exhibit A:
Estimated Distributions by Subdivision -- 100% Participation

County Qualifying Subdivision Share of 25% 
Subdivision Fund

(Total: $120,403,037.92)

Share of 45% 
Abatement Fund 

(Total: $216,725,468.26)

Total Maximum

Wicomico
Wicomico County, 
Maryland $1,859,422.26 $3,346,960.07 $5,206,382.34

Wicomico Salisbury City, Maryland $285,689.67 $514,241.40 $799,931.07

Worcester
Worcester County, 
Maryland $1,127,877.15 $2,030,178.88 $3,158,056.03

Worcester Berlin Town, Maryland $34,091.54 $61,364.78 $95,456.32
TOTALS $120,403,037.92 $216,725,468.26 $337,128,506.18

4



HOUSE BILL _____ 

 

By:  Delegates ___________________________________________ 

Introduced and read first time:  ___________ 

Assigned to:   

AN ACT concerning  

Opioid Restitution Fund 

FOR the purpose of providing that an appropriation in the State budget of funds received from a certain 

opioids settlement shall to be made in accordance with a certain State-Subdivision Agreement agreed 

upon pursuant to the settlement; directing the Secretary of the Department of Health to establish a 

grant program in compliance with a certain State-Subdivision Agreement, and generally relating to the 

Opioid Restitution Fund.  

 

BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,  

Article – State Finance and Procurement  

Section 7–331  

Annotated Code of Maryland 

(2015 Replacement Volume and 2018 Supplement)  

 

SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF MARYLAND, 

That the Laws of Maryland read as follows:  

 

Article – State Finance and Procurement 

 
§ 7-331. Opioid Restitution Fund 
 

(a) In this section, "Fund" means the Opioid Restitution Fund. 
 

(b) There is an Opioid Restitution Fund. 
 

(c) The purpose of the Fund is to retain the amount of settlement revenues deposited to the 
Fund in accordance with subsection (e)(1) of this section. 
 

(d) (1) The Fund is a special, nonlapsing fund that is not subject to § 7-302 of this subtitle. 
 
(2) The State Treasurer shall hold the Fund separately, and the Comptroller shall account for 
the Fund. 
 

(e) The Fund consists of: 
 



(1) all revenues received by the State from any source resulting, directly or indirectly, from 
any judgment against, or settlement with, opioid manufacturers, opioid research associations, or 
any other person in the opioid industry relating to any claims made or prosecuted by the State to 
recover damages for violations of State law; and 

 
(2) the interest earnings of the Fund. 
 

(f) The Fund may be used only to provide funds for: 
 
(1) improving access to medications proven to prevent or reverse an overdose; 

 
(2) supporting peer support specialists and screening, brief intervention, and referral to 

treatment services for hospitals, correctional facilities, and other high-risk populations; 
 

(3) increasing access to medications that support recovery from substance use disorders; 
 

(4) expanding the Heroin Coordinator Program, including for administrative expenses; 
 

(5)  expanding access to crisis beds and residential treatment services; 
 
(6) expanding and establishing safe stations, mobile crisis response systems, and crisis 

stabilization centers; 
 

(7) supporting the Health Crisis Hotline; 
 

(8) organizing primary and secondary school education campaigns to prevent opioid use, 
including for administrative expenses; 

 
(9) enforcing the laws regarding opioid prescriptions and sales, including for administrative 

expenses; 
 

(10)  research regarding and training for substance use treatment and overdose prevention, 
including for administrative expenses; and 
 

(11) supporting and expanding other evidence-based interventions for overdose prevention    
and substance use treatment. 

 
(g) (1) The State Treasurer shall invest the money of the Fund in the same manner as other 

State money may be invested. 
 
(2) Any interest earnings of the Fund shall be credited to the Fund. 
 

(h) (1) Expenditures from the Fund may be made only in accordance with the State budget. 
 

(2) FOR SETTLEMENT FUNDS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO THE FINAL DISTRIBUTOR 
AGREEMENT OF JULY 21, 2021 WITH MCKESSON CORPORATION, AMERISOURCE BERGEN 
CORPORATION, AND CARDINAL HEALTH, INCORPORATED, AS AMENDED, OR THE JANSSEN 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT OF JULY 21, 2021, AS AMENDED: 



i. THE APPROPRIATIONS IN THE STATE BUDGET SHALL BE MADE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE ALLOCATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS TO THE STATE AND 
ITS SUBDIVISIONS AGREED UPON IN THE STATE-SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT OF JANUARY 
21, 2022, AS AMENDED; AND 

 
ii. THE SECRETARY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SHALL ESTABLISH AND 

ADMINISTER A GRANT PROGRAM FOR DISTRIBUTION TO LOCAL SUBDIVISIONS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE-SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT OF JANUARY 21, 2022, AS 
AMENDED.  
 
(3) FOR PURPOSES OF SUBSECTION (2), THE ATTORNEY GENERAL SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE 
FOR IDENTIFYING AND DESIGNATING THE CONTROLLING AND CURRENT VERSION OF ANY 
AGREEMENT OR AMENDMENT THERETO. 

 

(i) (1) Money expended from the Fund for the programs and services described under 
subsection (f) of this section is supplemental to and is not intended to take the place of 
funding that otherwise would be appropriated for the programs and services. 
 
(2) Except as specified in subsection (f) of this section, money expended from the Fund may 
not be used for administrative expenses. 

 

(j) The Governor shall: 
 
(1) develop key goals, key objectives, and key performance indicators relating to substance 
use treatment and prevention efforts; and 
 
(2) SUBJECT TO THE MANDATED APPROPRIATIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION (H)(2) OF THIS 
SECTION, at least once annually, consult with substance use treatment and prevention 
stakeholders, including consumers, providers, families, and advocates, to identify 
recommended appropriations from the Fund; and 
 
(3) report on or before November 1 each year, in accordance with § 2-1257 of the State 
Government Article, to the General Assembly on: 
 

(i) an accounting of total funds expended from the Fund in the immediately preceding 
fiscal year, by: 

1. use; 
2. if applicable, jurisdiction; and 
3. budget program and subdivision; 
 

(ii) the performance indicators and progress toward achieving the goals and objectives 
developed under item (1) of this subsection; and 

 
(iii) SUBJECT TO THE MANDATED APPROPRIATIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION (H)(2) OF 

THIS SECTION, the recommended appropriations from the Fund identified in accordance with 

item (2) of this subsection. 

SECTION 2. AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, That this Act shall take effect on June 1, 2022. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2703 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING A BUDGET 3 
AMENDMENT OF THE CITY’S SPECIAL REVENUE FUND BUDGET AND 4 
TO ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE DONATED FUNDS FROM THE DRAPER 5 
HOLDINGS CHARITABLE FUND/BLESS OUR CHILDREN CAMPAIGN 6 
FOR THE SANTA’S WORKSHOP PROGRAM. 7 

 8 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury’s Housing and Community Development Department hosts 9 

a Santa’s Workshop program every year; and   10 
 11 
WHEREAS, Bless Our Children wishes to donate funds to help sponsor this annual program; 12 

and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the donation of funds will be used to purchase gifts, refreshments and equipment 15 

used to run the program; and 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, these donations are to be used to protect the public welfare by purchasing toys 18 

to provide to children; and 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, appropriations necessary for this donation must be made upon the 21 

recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 22 
 23 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 24 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  25 
 26 
Section 1.  The City’s FY22 Special Revenue Fund be and hereby is amended as follows: 27 

 28 
1) Increase 10700–456423–81001 Contribution Revenue by $4,000. 29 
2) Increase 10700–546006–81001 Operating Expense by $4,000. 30 

 31 
BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 32 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 33 
 34 
Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 35 

of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 36 
 37 
Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 38 

section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 39 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 40 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 41 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 42 

 43 
Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 44 

if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 45 
 46 
Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 47 
 48 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City 49 

of Salisbury held on the 10th day of January, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the 50 



Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council 51 
of the City of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 52 
 53 
ATTEST: 54 
 55 
 56 
           57 
Kimberly R. Nichols John R. Heath, President 58 
City Clerk       Salisbury City Council 59 
 60 
 61 
APPROVED BY ME THIS    day of    , 2022. 62 
 63 
 64 
      65 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 66 
 67 



 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2704 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND GRANTING 3 
THREE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENTS TO DELMARVA 4 
POWER & LIGHT COMPANY ACROSS THREE CITY OWNED PROPERTIES 5 
(PARKING LOT 13, SALISBURY PARKING GARAGE, AND SALISBURY CITY 6 
PARK) FOR INSTALLATION OF ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING 7 
STATION FACILITIES. 8 

 9 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury owns Parking Lot 13 (Map 0107, Grid 0008, Parcel 0994) located along W. 10 

Chestnut Street; the Parking Garage (Map 0107, Grid 0015, Parcel 0881) located at 101 E. Market Street; and the 11 
Salisbury City Park (Map 0107, Grid 0017, Parcel 0930) located at 500 E. Main Street;   12 

 13 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury is desirous of having facilities installed for the purpose of setting up electric 14 

vehicle charging stations in Parking Lot 13, the Parking Garage, and the Salisbury City Park; and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, Delmarva Power & Light Company desires to acquire a license or privilege, in, on, upon, over, 17 

under, across, along and through Parking Lot 13, the Parking Garage, and the Salisbury City Park to permit Delmarva 18 
Power & Light Company to construct, install, operate, maintain, repair, reinstall, replace, relocate, and remove electronic 19 
vehicle charging station facilities; and 20 

 21 
WHEREAS, a Right of Way and License Agreement by and between the City of Salisbury and Delmarva Power 22 

& Light Company will allow Delmarva Power & Light Company the right to construct, install, operate, maintain, repair, 23 
reinstall, replace, relocate the infrastructure for the electric vehicle charging stations in Parking Lot 13, the Parking 24 
Garage, and the Salisbury City Park; and 25 

 26 
 WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the Council (i) hereby approves a Right of Way and License Agreement for 27 
each of the three City properties, namely Parking Lot 13, the Parking Garage, and the Salisbury City Park (attached 28 
hereto and incorporated herein respectively as Exhibit A; Exhibit B; and Exhibit C) and (ii) hereby authorizes the 29 
Mayor’s execution thereof on behalf of the City; and, 30 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 31 
MARYLAND, as follows: 32 
 Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the City of Salisbury, those certain Right of 33 
Way and License Agreements, by and between the City of Salisbury and Delmarva Power & Light Company, attached 34 
hereto and incorporated herein respectively as Exhibit A; Exhibit B; and Exhibit C. 35 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 36 
Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 37 

Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 38 
paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 39 
unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, 40 
subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed 41 
valid and enforceable. 42 

Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if such recitals 43 
were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 44 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 45 
 46 



 

 
 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury 47 
held on the 10th day of January, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having been published 48 
as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City of Salisbury on the _____ day of 49 
_____________, 2022. 50 
 51 
ATTEST: 52 
 53 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 54 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 55 
 56 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 57 
 58 
 59 
________________________________________ 60 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 61 



1 (EXHIBIT A) 

RIGHT OF WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(EV Charging Station Facilities) 

 
 
 THIS RIGHT OF WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) entered into this 
____ day of ______, 2021 between The City of Salisbury (hereinafter called "Grantor") and 
Delmarva Power & Light Company (hereinafter called "Licensee"). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor is the owner of the property hereinafter described situated along 
W. Chestnut Street in the City of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, and identified as Map 
0107, Grid 0008, Parcel 0994, and acquired from Cavalier Resources Limited Partnership, a 
Maryland limited partnership, by Deed dated September 3, 2004, and recorded among the Land 
Records of Wicomico County in Liber 2286, Folio 671 (“Grantor’s Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Licensee wishes to acquire the license or privilege, as hereinafter 
described, defined and limited, in, on, upon, over, under, across, along and through said 
Grantor’s Property from and to certain points and places hereinafter described to permit the 
Licensee to construct, install, operate, maintain, repair, reinstall, replace, relocate, and remove 
therein a charging station facility (as herein defined). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1.    GRANT OF LICENSE: 
   
  1.1  Grantor hereby grant(s) to Licensee, its successors, licensees and assigns, 
for value received, the right to construct, install, reconstruct, operate and maintain electric 
vehicle Charging Station Facilities, including, but not limited to, pads, charging facilities, 
electric and communication lines, poles, crossarms, wires, anchors, guys, conduits, cables, 
transformers, meters, appurtenant equipment and enclosures (collectively, “Charging Station 
Facilities”) upon, over, under and across Grantor’s Property. 
 
  Together with the right of access at all times to the Charging Station Facilities, the 
right to extend electric and communication lines by the most direct practical route from the main 
lines to any Charging Station Facilities on Grantor’s Property, the right to trim, top, cut down 
and remove trees and/or shrubs adjacent to Charging Station Facilities to provide proper 
operating clearance, the right to make necessary openings and excavations for the purpose of 
examining, repairing, replacing, altering or expanding Charging Station Facilities provided that 
all openings or excavations shall be properly refilled and the property left in good and safe 
condition, and the right to place signs at Grantor’s Property, near the Charging Station Facilities 
restricting use of parking spaces adjacent to the Charging Station Facilities to electric vehicles 
using or in line to use the charging facilities.  No new buildings or structures are to be erected 
under or over Charging Station Facilities, and adequate horizontal clearances, with a five (5) foot 
minimum, must be maintained.  Shrubbery, trees, fences, or other obstructions shall not be 



 2 

placed so close to any Charging Station Facilities that they would, in the sole judgment of the 
Company, hinder or obstruct operation or maintenance of said equipment. 
   
 
 2. LICENSE LOCATION: 
 
  2.1 Subject to the terms hereinafter described, the Charging Station Facilities 
are or are to be located at Grantor’s Property in the location generally shown on the job print 
attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 
 
 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION:  
 

  3.1 This License Agreement shall take effect as of the date of this Agreement 
(“Effective Date”) and shall terminate five (5) years from the Effective Date (the “Termination 
Date”) unless otherwise earlier terminated or extended as provided for herein.  On the first and 
each successive five (5) year anniversary of the Termination Date (the “Extension Termination 
Date”), the term shall be extended for an additional five (5) year period (the “Extension Period”) 
unless otherwise terminated as provided for herein. 
 
  3.2  This Agreement shall terminate in whole or in part as to any portion or 
segment of the Charging Station Facilities upon the happening of any of the following events: 
 
   (1) By Licensee giving sixty (60) days prior written notice to Grantor 
of termination as to all or any part of its Charging Station Facilities together with complete 
removal by the Licensee of all or that part of the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities and 
restoration of Grantor’s Property to the approval and satisfaction of Grantor. 
 
   (2) Subsequent written mutual agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
   (3) By Grantor at anytime giving six (6) months prior written notice to 
Licensee to remove all or any part of its Charging Station Facilities and restoration of Grantor’s 
Property to the approval and satisfaction of Grantor. 
  
 
 4. NON-EXCLUSIVITY OF LICENSE: 
 
  4.1 The license permitted to the Licensee by the Grantor pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be non-exclusive and occupations of the Grantors Property by one or more 
cable, wire, pipeline or other facilities owned and/or operated by any other person(s), 
company(ies) or other entity(ies) may be permitted at the sole discretion of Grantor. 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

5. GRANTOR APPROVAL PROCESS: 
 
  5.1  Prior to any work of any character being performed at any locations which 
are the subject matter of this agreement, the Licensee shall submit to Grantor detailed plans 
indicating the scope and specifications of the work to be performed for review by Grantor’s 
engineers or designee. Upon review of the plans, Grantor shall have the right, at its sole 
discretion, to approve, modify, and/or reject the proposed construction. Upon completion of the 
proposed construction, Grantor shall have the right to inspect the work in order to determine 
acceptance of construction and compliance with approved plans. 
 
  
 6. PERMITS: 
 
  6.1 The Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall secure and maintain in 
effect all federal, state and local permits and licenses required for the construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance, repair, reinstallation, replacement, relocation and/or removal of the 
Charging Station Facilities,  including, without limitation, zoning, building, health, 
environmental or communication permits or licenses, and shall indemnify the Grantor against 
payment of the costs therefor and against any fines or penalties that may be levied for failure to 
procure or to cure violations thereof.  The Grantor shall take any and all actions or steps 
necessary to cooperate with and assist the Licensee in securing any such permits and licenses. 
 
 
 7. SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
                        7.1 Construction of the Charging Station Facility as shown on Exhibits 1A 
and 1B.  
 
 

8. NON-DISTURBANCE/THIRD PARTY USERS: 
 
 8.1  Except as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, the Grantor shall not 

license, permit or authorize its agents, employees or contractors to disturb or interfere with 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities or the Licensee's rights hereunder, nor shall the Grantor 
deny the Licensee access to the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities.  It is expressly understood 
however, that Grantor has no control over unauthorized third-party users who are, or may be, 
occupying portions of the Grantor’s Property.  Under no circumstances, shall the Grantor be 
liable to the Licensee for unauthorized use of the Charging Station Facilities.  The Grantor will 
cooperate with the Licensee, at the latter's expense, in any actions against third parties 
undertaken by the Licensee as a result of the unauthorized use of the Charging Station Facilities.  
All such activities by the Licensee shall be governed by and subject to the Licensee's 
indemnification of the Grantor pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 4 

 9. LIABILITY/INDEMNITY: 
 
  9.1   The Licensee hereby assumes, releases and agrees to indemnify, defend, 
protect and save the Grantor harmless from and against any loss of and/or damage to the property 
of the Grantor, third parties or the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities and all loss and/or 
damage on account of injury to or death of any persons whomsoever (including employees and 
invitees of the parties hereto and all other persons), arising during the Planning and Design 
Phase, Maintenance and Operating Phase and/or the Installation and Construction Phase and 
throughout the term hereof, caused by or growing out of the plan, design, construction and 
installation, or subsequent operation, maintenance, repair, reinstallation, replacement, relocation 
or removal of the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities, or any part thereof, unless such loss 
and/or damage arises as a direct result of the negligence or willful misconduct of the Grantor. 
 
  9.2  Grantor shall not be liable to Licensee for consequential damages 
including, but not limited to any claim from any client, customer or patron for loss of revenue or 
services arising from any act or omission of Grantor. 
 

9.3   The Licensee further assumes, releases and agrees to indemnify, defend, 
protect and save the Grantor harmless from and against any loss and/or damage to any property 
or facilities of any party (including the Grantor or the Licensee or any persons operating or using 
such facilities) arising from a fire, caused by or growing out of the presence, construction, 
maintenance, use, operation, repair, change relocation or subsequent removal of the Licensee's 
Charging Station Facilities or any part thereof; loss and/or damage being deemed to include cost 
and expense thereof (including reasonable legal fees and court costs) to the extent such loss 
and/or damages are not due to or arise from the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor. 
 

9.4  Grantor shall give Licensee prompt notice of any claims or actions against 
them for which Licensee may be required to indemnify Grantor under this Agreement. In 
addition to Licensee’s liability for any loss that could be sustained by Grantor, Licensee shall be 
responsible for all litigation expense incurred by Grantor, if any, including but not limited to all 
attorneys’ fees payable on a current basis. 
 
 
 10. LIENS: 
 
  10.1  Each party shall keep the other's facilities and property free of all liens 
which arise in any way from or as a result of its activities, and cause any which may arise to be 
discharged or released of record as provided in this article, and shall indemnify and hold the 
other harmless from any and all loss, costs, damages and expenses which the other may incur or 
suffer if such a lien is filed. 
 
  10.2  Nothing herein shall preclude the contest of the lien or contract or action 
upon which the same arose.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in such contest. 
 
  10.3  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to give, and the Grantor 
hereby expressly waives, any claims of ownership in and to any part or the whole of the 



 5 

Licensee's Charging Station Facilities unless otherwise elsewhere provided to the contrary.  
Furthermore, nothing herein shall be deemed to give, and the Licensee hereby expressly waives, 
any claims of ownership in and to any part or the whole of Grantor’s real or personal property. 
 
 
 11. BREACH, REMEDIES: 
 
  11.1  The Licensee and the Grantor each agree that neither shall proceed against 
the other by litigation before the offending party has had written notice of and reasonable time to 
respond and cure such breach or defect; provided, however, neither party shall be required to 
give the other time to respond and cure if any such delay will cause irreparable harm. 
 
  11.2  Remedies available to each party for breach of this Agreement shall 
include: (1) litigation for specific performance; (2) litigation for injunction relief; (3) litigation 
for damages and costs. In no event will either Grantor or the Licensee be responsible to the other 
party for consequential damages. 
 
  11.3  Any waiver by either party at any time of any of its rights as to anything 
herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right or covenant herein or of any 
other matter subsequently occurring. 
 
 
 12. COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES: 

 
12.1  Licensee and Grantor covenants and warrants, respectively, it has full right 

and authority to enter into this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof, and that, by 
entering into and performing this Agreement, it is not in violation of its charter or by-laws, or 
any law, regulation or agreement by which it is bound or to which it is subject.  

 
12.2   Licensee and Grantor covenants and warrants, respectively, that  it, to the 

best of its knowledge, has no litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against it or its 
facilities that would threaten this Agreement, nor has it violated, to its knowledge, any rule, order 
or regulation issued by any applicable governmental authority which might adversely affect the 
other party's interest thereunder or right to make the agreements hereunder, or execute or 
perform this Agreement, and that the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has 
been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action, that the signatories hereto are authorized 
to sign this Agreement. 
 
 

13. RECORDINGS, TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES: 
 
  13.1 If Licensee chooses to record this Agreement, the Licensee shall pay all 
transfer taxes, documentary stamps, recording costs or fees, or any similar expense in connection 
with the recording or filing of this Agreement and shall pay all costs of recording a release upon 
termination.  The Licensee further agrees that if it is determined by any state or local 
governmental authority that the sale, acquisition, license, grant, transfer or disposition of any part 



 6 

or portion of the property or rights herein described requires the payment of any tax (including 
sales or use tax) under any statute, regulation or rule, the Licensee shall pay the same, plus any 
penalty or interest hereon, directly to said taxing authority and shall hold the Grantor harmless 
therefrom.  The Licensee shall pay all annual or periodic taxes levied or assessed upon the 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities, or on account of their existence or use, and shall 
indemnify the Grantor against the payment thereof. 
 
 

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: 
 
  14.1  The Grantor exercises no control whatsoever over the employment, 
discharge, compensation of or services rendered by the Licensee's employees or contractors, and 
it is the intention of the parties that the Licensee shall be and remain an independent contractor 
and nothing herein shall be construed as inconsistent with that status or as creating or implying 
any partnership or joint venture between the Licensee and the Grantor. 
 
 

15. SUCCESSION/ASSIGNABILITY: 
 
  15.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their respective successors or assigns.  This agreement is assignable by 
Grantor without the consent of Licensee.  Licensee shall not assign this Agreement to any other 
entity or individual without the prior written consent of Grantor. 
 
 
 16. NOTICES: 
 
  16.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and communications 
concerning this Agreement shall be addressed to: 
 
  The Licensee at: (one copy to each) 
 
  Delmarva Power & Light Company 

            2530 North Salisbury Blvd. 
 Salisbury, MD 21801 
 Attention: Manager of Real Estate 
 Email: Steven.Krup@ExelonCorp.com (not sufficient for notice purposes) 

 
Exelon Corporation 
701 Ninth Street NW, 9th Floor  
Washington, DC 20068 
Attn: Constance H. Pierce 
Assistant General Counsel 

 
  The Grantor at: (one copy to each) 
 

mailto:Steven.Krup@ExelonCorp.com


 7 

  The City of Salisbury 
  ATTN:________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
 
or at such other addresses as may be designated in writing to the other party. 
 
  16.2 Unless otherwise provided herein, notices shall be sent by registered or 
certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed served or delivered to addressee, or its 
office, upon the date of return receipt acknowledgment or, if postal claim notice is given, on the 
date of its return marked "unclaimed", provided, however, that upon receipt of a returned notice 
marked "unclaimed", the sending party shall make reasonable effort to contact and notify the 
other party by telephone. 
 

 
17. LEGAL FORUM: 

 
  17.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Maryland. 
 
  17.2 This Agreement shall not be interpreted against either party for the reason 
that the final Agreement was prepared by them. 
 
 
 
    GRANTOR 
 
ATTEST:    THE CITY OF SALISBURY     
     
_______________________   By:       
      Name:       
      Title:       
                 
 
 
                    LICENSEE 
 
ATTEST:     DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
  
_______________________   By:       
      Name:       
      Title:       
 
 
 



 8 

STATE OF MARYLAND, ____________________ COUNTY, TO WIT: 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ____ day of ________________, 2021, before me, a Notary 
Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared ____________________, 
who acknowledged themself to be the _________________ of the City of Salisbury, and that 
they, as such officer, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of 
said corporation for the purposes therein contained. 
 
AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 STATE OF MARYLAND, ____________________ COUNTY, TO WIT: 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ____ day of ________________, 2021, before me, a Notary 
Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared ____________________, 
who acknowledged themself to be the _________________ of Delmarva Power & Light 
Company, and that they, as such officer, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of said corporation for the purposes therein contained. 
 
AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: ______________  
 
 
 



SALISBURY LOT 13

SCALE : NONE

Newark, DE - An Exelon Company

W. CHESTNUT STREET, SALISBURY, MD 21801
DPL PUBLIC CHARGING EQUIPMENT PLAN

2 LEVEL-2  EVSEEXHIBIT 1

PLAN VIEW

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY LINE

DISCLAIMER:
THIS PLAN IS FOR GENERAL PRESENTATION PURPOSES
ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED, NOR SHOULD BE USED, AS A
SURVEY.  THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN WERE OBTAINED
USING THE MERLIN-MARYLAND ONLINE DATABASE. 
ACCURACY OF INFORMATION CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.

EXACT CONDUIT ROUTES
TO BE FIELD DETERMINED

LEVEL 2 EVSE

EXISTING DPL
POWER POLEMETER

PEDESTAL

EXISTING
 POLE LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W CHESTNUT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.994

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.995

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.957

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND LEVEL 2 EVSE FOUNDATION METER PEDESTAL FOUNDATION EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN CONDUIT GRASS CONCRETE



1 (EXHIBIT B)  

RIGHT OF WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(EV Charging Station Facilities) 

THIS RIGHT OF WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) entered into this 
____ day of ______, 2021 between The City of Salisbury (hereinafter called "Grantor") and 
Delmarva Power & Light Company (hereinafter called "Licensee"). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Grantor is the owner of the property hereinafter described situated at 101 
E. Market Street in the City of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, and identified as Map
0107, Grid 0015, Parcel 0881, and being described as “61,979 SQ FT NS CIRCLE AVE CITY
OF SALISBURY”, consisting of 61,979 square feet of land, more or less (“Grantor’s Property”);
and

WHEREAS, the Licensee wishes to acquire the license or privilege, as hereinafter 
described, defined and limited, in, on, upon, over, under, across, along and through said 
Grantor’s Property from and to certain points and places hereinafter described to permit the 
Licensee to construct, install, operate, maintain, repair, reinstall, replace, relocate, and remove 
therein a charging station facility (as herein defined). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Grant of License:

1.1  Grantor hereby grant(s) to Licensee, its successors, licensees and assigns,
for value received, the right to construct, install, reconstruct, operate and maintain electric 
vehicle Charging Station Facilities, including, but not limited to, pads, charging facilities, 
electric and communication lines, poles, crossarms, wires, anchors, guys, conduits, cables, 
transformers, meters, appurtenant equipment and enclosures (collectively, “Charging Station 
Facilities”) upon, over, under and across Grantor’s Property. 

Together with the right of access at all times to the Charging Station Facilities, the 
right to extend electric and communication lines by the most direct practical route from the main 
lines to any Charging Station Facilities on Grantor’s Property, the right to trim, top, cut down 
and remove trees and/or shrubs adjacent to Charging Station Facilities to provide proper 
operating clearance, the right to make necessary openings and excavations for the purpose of 
examining, repairing, replacing, altering or expanding Charging Station Facilities provided that 
all openings or excavations shall be properly refilled and the property left in good and safe 
condition, and the right to place signs at Grantor’s Property, near the Charging Station Facilities 
restricting use of parking spaces adjacent to the Charging Station Facilities to electric vehicles 
using or in line to use the charging facilities.  No new buildings or structures are to be erected 
under or over Charging Station Facilities, and adequate horizontal clearances, with a five (5) foot 
minimum, must be maintained.  Shrubbery, trees, fences, or other obstructions shall not be 



2 

placed so close to any Charging Station Facilities that they would, in the sole judgment of the 
Company, hinder or obstruct operation or maintenance of said equipment. 

2. LICENSE LOCATION:

2.1 Subject to the terms hereinafter described, the Charging Station Facilities
are or are to be located at Grantor’s Property in the location generally shown on the job print 
attached hereto as Exhibit 1A and 1B. 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION:

3.1 This License Agreement shall take effect as of the date of this Agreement 
(“Effective Date”) and shall terminate five (5) years from the Effective Date (the “Termination 
Date”) unless otherwise earlier terminated or extended as provided for herein.  On the first and 
each successive five (5) year anniversary of the Termination Date (the “Extension Termination 
Date”), the term shall be extended for an additional five (5) year period (the “Extension Period”) 
unless otherwise terminated as provided for herein. 

3.2  This Agreement shall terminate in whole or in part as to any portion or 
segment of the Charging Station Facilities upon the happening of any of the following events: 

(1) By Licensee giving sixty (60) days prior written notice to Grantor
of termination as to all or any part of its Charging Station Facilities together with complete 
removal by the Licensee of all or that part of the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities and 
restoration of Grantor’s Property to the approval and satisfaction of Grantor. 

(2) Subsequent written mutual agreement of the parties hereto.

(3) By Grantor at anytime giving six (6) months prior written notice to
Licensee to remove all or any part of its Charging Station Facilities and restoration of Grantor’s 
Property to the approval and satisfaction of Grantor. 

4. NON-EXCLUSIVITY OF LICENSE:

4.1 The license permitted to the Licensee by the Grantor pursuant to this
Agreement shall be non-exclusive and occupations of the Grantors Property by one or more 
cable, wire, pipeline or other facilities owned and/or operated by any other person(s), 
company(ies) or other entity(ies) may be permitted at the sole discretion of Grantor. 



 3 

 
5. GRANTOR APPROVAL PROCESS: 

 
  5.1  Prior to any work of any character being performed at any locations which 
are the subject matter of this agreement, the Licensee shall submit to Grantor detailed plans 
indicating the scope and specifications of the work to be performed for review by Grantor’s 
engineers or designee. Upon review of the plans, Grantor shall have the right, at its sole 
discretion, to approve, modify, and/or reject the proposed construction. Upon completion of the 
proposed construction, Grantor shall have the right to inspect the work in order to determine 
acceptance of construction and compliance with approved plans. 
 
  
 6. PERMITS: 
 
  6.1 The Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall secure and maintain in 
effect all federal, state and local permits and licenses required for the construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance, repair, reinstallation, replacement, relocation and/or removal of the 
Charging Station Facilities,  including, without limitation, zoning, building, health, 
environmental or communication permits or licenses, and shall indemnify the Grantor against 
payment of the costs therefor and against any fines or penalties that may be levied for failure to 
procure or to cure violations thereof.  The Grantor shall take any and all actions or steps 
necessary to cooperate with and assist the Licensee in securing any such permits and licenses. 
 
 
 7. SCOPE OF WORK: In addition to the construction of the Charging Station 
Facility as shown on Exhibits 1A and 1B, Licensee will replace the existing 300 kVA 
transformer at coordinate 46845/93129 servicing the property, with a 500 kVA transformer, and 
Grantor agrees that the new 500 kVA transformer is permitted by Easement Agreement dated 
April 23, 1976, and recorded among the Land Records of Wicomico County, at Liber 866, folio 
885.  The new 500 kVA transformer is to be installed prior to or with the installation of the 
Charging Station Facilities. 
 
 

8. NON-DISTURBANCE/THIRD PARTY USERS: 
 
 8.1  Except as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, the Grantor shall not 

license, permit or authorize its agents, employees or contractors to disturb or interfere with 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities or the Licensee's rights hereunder, nor shall the Grantor 
deny the Licensee access to the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities.  It is expressly understood 
however, that Grantor has no control over unauthorized third-party users who are, or may be, 
occupying portions of the Grantor’s Property.  Under no circumstances, shall the Grantor be 
liable to the Licensee for unauthorized use of the Charging Station Facilities.  The Grantor will 
cooperate with the Licensee, at the latter's expense, in any actions against third parties 
undertaken by the Licensee as a result of the unauthorized use of the Charging Station Facilities.  
All such activities by the Licensee shall be governed by and subject to the Licensee's 
indemnification of the Grantor pursuant to this Agreement. 



 4 

 
 9. LIABILITY/INDEMNITY: 
 
  9.1   The Licensee hereby assumes, releases and agrees to indemnify, defend, 
protect and save the Grantor harmless from and against any loss of and/or damage to the property 
of the Grantor, third parties or the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities and all loss and/or 
damage on account of injury to or death of any persons whomsoever (including employees and 
invitees of the parties hereto and all other persons), arising during the Planning and Design 
Phase, Maintenance and Operating Phase and/or the Installation and Construction Phase and 
throughout the term hereof, caused by or growing out of the plan, design, construction and 
installation, or subsequent operation, maintenance, repair, reinstallation, replacement, relocation 
or removal of the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities, or any part thereof, unless such loss 
and/or damage arises as a direct result of the negligence or willful misconduct of the Grantor. 
 
  9.2  Grantor shall not be liable to Licensee for consequential damages 
including, but not limited to any claim from any client, customer or patron for loss of revenue or 
services arising from any act or omission of Grantor. 
 

9.3   The Licensee further assumes, releases and agrees to indemnify, defend, 
protect and save the Grantor harmless from and against any loss and/or damage to any property 
or facilities of any party (including the Grantor or the Licensee or any persons operating or using 
such facilities) arising from a fire, caused by or growing out of the presence, construction, 
maintenance, use, operation, repair, change relocation or subsequent removal of the Licensee's 
Charging Station Facilities or any part thereof; loss and/or damage being deemed to include cost 
and expense thereof (including reasonable legal fees and court costs) to the extent such loss 
and/or damages are not due to or arise from the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor. 
 

9.4  Grantor shall give Licensee prompt notice of any claims or actions against 
them for which Licensee may be required to indemnify Grantor under this Agreement. In 
addition to Licensee’s liability for any loss that could be sustained by Grantor, Licensee shall be 
responsible for all litigation expense incurred by Grantor, if any, including but not limited to all 
attorneys’ fees payable on a current basis. 
 
 
 10. LIENS: 
 
  10.1  Each party shall keep the other's facilities and property free of all liens 
which arise in any way from or as a result of its activities, and cause any which may arise to be 
discharged or released of record as provided in this article, and shall indemnify and hold the 
other harmless from any and all loss, costs, damages and expenses which the other may incur or 
suffer if such a lien is filed. 
 
  10.2  Nothing herein shall preclude the contest of the lien or contract or action 
upon which the same arose.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in such contest. 
 



 5 

  10.3  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to give, and the Grantor 
hereby expressly waives, any claims of ownership in and to any part or the whole of the 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities unless otherwise elsewhere provided to the contrary.  
Furthermore, nothing herein shall be deemed to give, and the Licensee hereby expressly waives, 
any claims of ownership in and to any part or the whole of Grantor’s real or personal property. 
 
 
 11. BREACH, REMEDIES: 
 
  11.1  The Licensee and the Grantor each agree that neither shall proceed against 
the other by litigation before the offending party has had written notice of and reasonable time to 
respond and cure such breach or defect; provided, however, neither party shall be required to 
give the other time to respond and cure if any such delay will cause irreparable harm. 
 
  11.2  Remedies available to each party for breach of this Agreement shall 
include: (1) litigation for specific performance; (2) litigation for injunction relief; (3) litigation 
for damages and costs. In no event will either Grantor or the Licensee be responsible to the other 
party for consequential damages. 
 
  11.3  Any waiver by either party at any time of any of its rights as to anything 
herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right or covenant herein or of any 
other matter subsequently occurring. 
 
 
 12. COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES: 

 
12.1  Licensee and Grantor covenants and warrants, respectively, it has full right 

and authority to enter into this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof, and that, by 
entering into and performing this Agreement, it is not in violation of its charter or by-laws, or 
any law, regulation or agreement by which it is bound or to which it is subject.  

 
12.2   Licensee and Grantor covenants and warrants, respectively, that  it, to the 

best of its knowledge, has no litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against it or its 
facilities that would threaten this Agreement, nor has it violated, to its knowledge, any rule, order 
or regulation issued by any applicable governmental authority which might adversely affect the 
other party's interest thereunder or right to make the agreements hereunder, or execute or 
perform this Agreement, and that the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has 
been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action, that the signatories hereto are authorized 
to sign this Agreement. 
 
 

13. RECORDINGS, TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES: 
 
  13.1 If Licensee chooses to record this Agreement, the Licensee shall pay all 
transfer taxes, documentary stamps, recording costs or fees, or any similar expense in connection 
with the recording or filing of this Agreement and shall pay all costs of recording a release upon 



6 

termination.  The Licensee further agrees that if it is determined by any state or local 
governmental authority that the sale, acquisition, license, grant, transfer or disposition of any part 
or portion of the property or rights herein described requires the payment of any tax (including 
sales or use tax) under any statute, regulation or rule, the Licensee shall pay the same, plus any 
penalty or interest hereon, directly to said taxing authority and shall hold the Grantor harmless 
therefrom.  The Licensee shall pay all annual or periodic taxes levied or assessed upon the 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities, or on account of their existence or use, and shall 
indemnify the Grantor against the payment thereof. 

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:

14.1  The Grantor exercises no control whatsoever over the employment,
discharge, compensation of or services rendered by the Licensee's employees or contractors, and 
it is the intention of the parties that the Licensee shall be and remain an independent contractor 
and nothing herein shall be construed as inconsistent with that status or as creating or implying 
any partnership or joint venture between the Licensee and the Grantor. 

15. SUCCESSION/ASSIGNABILITY:

15.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors or assigns.  This agreement is assignable by 
Grantor without the consent of Licensee.  Licensee shall not assign this Agreement to any other 
entity or individual without the prior written consent of Grantor. 

16. NOTICES:

16.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and communications
concerning this Agreement shall be addressed to: 

The Licensee at: (one copy to each) 

Delmarva Power & Light Company 
2530 North Salisbury Blvd. 

Salisbury, MD 21801 
Attention: Manager of Real Estate 
Email: Steven.Krup@ExelonCorp.com (not sufficient for notice purposes) 

Exelon Corporation 
701 Ninth Street NW, 9th Floor 
Washington, DC 20068 
Attn: Constance H. Pierce 
Assistant General Counsel 

mailto:Steven.Krup@ExelonCorp.com


7 

The Grantor at: (one copy to each) 

The City of Salisbury 
ATTN:________________________ 
_____________________________ 
_____________________________ 
_____________________________ 

or at such other addresses as may be designated in writing to the other party. 

16.2 Unless otherwise provided herein, notices shall be sent by registered or 
certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed served or delivered to addressee, or its 
office, upon the date of return receipt acknowledgment or, if postal claim notice is given, on the 
date of its return marked "unclaimed", provided, however, that upon receipt of a returned notice 
marked "unclaimed", the sending party shall make reasonable effort to contact and notify the 
other party by telephone. 

17. LEGAL FORUM:

17.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Maryland. 

17.2 This Agreement shall not be interpreted against either party for the reason 
that the final Agreement was prepared by them. 

GRANTOR 

ATTEST: THE CITY OF SALISBURY 

_______________________ By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: LICENSEE 

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

_______________________ ________________________________ 
Name:  
Title:  



8 

STATE OF MARYLAND, ____________________ COUNTY, TO WIT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ____ day of ________________, 2021, before me, a Notary 
Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared ____________________, 
who acknowledged themself to be the _________________ of the City of Salisbury, and that 
they, as such officer, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of 
said corporation for the purposes therein contained. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

STATE OF MARYLAND, ____________________ COUNTY, TO WIT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ____ day of ________________, 2021, before me, a Notary 
Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared ____________________, 
who acknowledged themself to be the _________________ of Delmarva Power & Light 
Company, and that they, as such officer, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of said corporation for the purposes therein contained. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 



SALISBURY
PARKING GARAGE

SCALE : NONE

Newark, DE - An Exelon Company

101 E. MARKET STREET, SALISBURY, MD 21807
DPL PUBLIC CHARGING EQUIPMENT PLAN

3 LEVEL-2 WALL MOUNTED EVSEEXHIBIT 1A

DISCLAIMER:
THIS PLAN IS FOR GENERAL PRESENTATION PURPOSES
ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED, NOR SHOULD BE USED, AS A
SURVEY.  THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN WERE OBTAINED
USING THE MERLIN-MARYLAND ONLINE DATABASE. 
ACCURACY OF INFORMATION CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.

PLAN VIEW
NOT TO SCALE

SEE EXHIBIT 1BPROPERTY
BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND METER PEDESTAL & FOUNDATION  WALL MOUNTED NOVACHARGE EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN GRASS CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALISBURY PARKING GARAGE; LEVEL 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N CIRCLE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S DIVISION ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.881

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.880

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.878

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.849

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.850

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.851

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.852

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.853

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.854

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.855

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.856

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.858

AutoCAD SHX Text
E MARKET ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S DIVISION ST



SALISBURY
PARKING GARAGE

SCALE : NONE

Newark, DE - An Exelon Company

101 E. MARKET STREET, SALISBURY, MD 21807
DPL PUBLIC CHARGING EQUIPMENT PLAN

3 LEVEL-2 WALL MOUNTED EVSEEXHIBIT 1B

PLAN VIEW
NOT TO SCALE

EXISTING PAD MOUNTED 
TRANSFORMER 
46845/93129

OVERHEAD CONDUIT ROUTE TO BE FIELD
DETERMINED. REFER TO THE LINEAR

PERSPECTIVE FOR RECOMMENDED ROUTE.

WALL MOUNTED LEVEL 2
NOVACHARGE EVSE. (TYPICAL OF 3)

EXACT UNDERGROUND CONDUIT
ROUTES TO BE FIELD DETERMINED.

METER PEDESTAL
& FOUNDATION

EXISTING BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND METER PEDESTAL & FOUNDATION  WALL MOUNTED NOVACHARGE EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN GRASS CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALISBURY PARKING GARAGE; LEVEL 3



1 (EXHIBIT C) 

RIGHT OF WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(EV Charging Station Facilities) 

 
 
 THIS RIGHT OF WAY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) entered into this 
____ day of ______, 2021 between The City of Salisbury (hereinafter called "Grantor") and 
Delmarva Power & Light Company (hereinafter called "Licensee"). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor is the owner of the property hereinafter described situated at 500 
E. Main Street in the City of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, and identified as Map 
0107, Grid 0017, Parcel 0930, and acquired from The Salisbury Realty Company, a corporation 
under the Laws of the State of Maryland, by Deed dated July14, 1925, and recorded among the 
Land Records of Wicomico County in Liber 140, Folio 28 (“Grantor’s Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Licensee wishes to acquire the license or privilege, as hereinafter 
described, defined and limited, in, on, upon, over, under, across, along and through said 
Grantor’s Property from and to certain points and places hereinafter described to permit the 
Licensee to construct, install, operate, maintain, repair, reinstall, replace, relocate, and remove 
therein a charging station facility (as herein defined). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1.    GRANT OF LICENSE: 
   
  1.1  Grantor hereby grant(s) to Licensee, its successors, licensees and assigns, 
for value received, the right to construct, install, reconstruct, operate and maintain electric 
vehicle Charging Station Facilities, including, but not limited to, pads, charging facilities, 
electric and communication lines, poles, crossarms, wires, anchors, guys, conduits, cables, 
transformers, meters, appurtenant equipment and enclosures (collectively, “Charging Station 
Facilities”) upon, over, under and across Grantor’s Property. 
 
  Together with the right of access at all times to the Charging Station Facilities, the 
right to extend electric and communication lines by the most direct practical route from the main 
lines to any Charging Station Facilities on Grantor’s Property, the right to trim, top, cut down 
and remove trees and/or shrubs adjacent to Charging Station Facilities to provide proper 
operating clearance, the right to make necessary openings and excavations for the purpose of 
examining, repairing, replacing, altering or expanding Charging Station Facilities provided that 
all openings or excavations shall be properly refilled and the property left in good and safe 
condition, and the right to place signs at Grantor’s Property, near the Charging Station Facilities 
restricting use of parking spaces adjacent to the Charging Station Facilities to electric vehicles 
using or in line to use the charging facilities.  No new buildings or structures are to be erected 
under or over Charging Station Facilities, and adequate horizontal clearances, with a five (5) foot 
minimum, must be maintained.  Shrubbery, trees, fences, or other obstructions shall not be 



 2 

placed so close to any Charging Station Facilities that they would, in the sole judgment of the 
Company, hinder or obstruct operation or maintenance of said equipment. 
   
 
 2. LICENSE LOCATION: 
 
  2.1 Subject to the terms hereinafter described, the Charging Station Facilities 
are or are to be located at Grantor’s Property in the location generally shown on the job print 
attached hereto as Exhibit 1A and 1B. 
 
 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION:  
 

  3.1 This License Agreement shall take effect as of the date of this Agreement 
(“Effective Date”) and shall terminate five (5) years from the Effective Date (the “Termination 
Date”) unless otherwise earlier terminated or extended as provided for herein.  On the first and 
each successive five (5) year anniversary of the Termination Date (the “Extension Termination 
Date”), the term shall be extended for an additional five (5) year period (the “Extension Period”) 
unless otherwise terminated as provided for herein. 
 
  3.2  This Agreement shall terminate in whole or in part as to any portion or 
segment of the Charging Station Facilities upon the happening of any of the following events: 
 
   (1) By Licensee giving sixty (60) days prior written notice to Grantor 
of termination as to all or any part of its Charging Station Facilities together with complete 
removal by the Licensee of all or that part of the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities and 
restoration of Grantor’s Property to the approval and satisfaction of Grantor. 
 
   (2) Subsequent written mutual agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
   (3) By Grantor at anytime giving six (6) months prior written notice to 
Licensee to remove all or any part of its Charging Station Facilities and restoration of Grantor’s 
Property to the approval and satisfaction of Grantor. 
  
 
 4. NON-EXCLUSIVITY OF LICENSE: 
 
  4.1 The license permitted to the Licensee by the Grantor pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be non-exclusive and occupations of the Grantors Property by one or more 
cable, wire, pipeline or other facilities owned and/or operated by any other person(s), 
company(ies) or other entity(ies) may be permitted at the sole discretion of Grantor. 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

5. GRANTOR APPROVAL PROCESS: 
 
  5.1  Prior to any work of any character being performed at any locations which 
are the subject matter of this agreement, the Licensee shall submit to Grantor detailed plans 
indicating the scope and specifications of the work to be performed for review by Grantor’s 
engineers or designee. Upon review of the plans, Grantor shall have the right, at its sole 
discretion, to approve, modify, and/or reject the proposed construction. Upon completion of the 
proposed construction, Grantor shall have the right to inspect the work in order to determine 
acceptance of construction and compliance with approved plans. 
 
  
 6. PERMITS: 
 
  6.1 The Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall secure and maintain in 
effect all federal, state and local permits and licenses required for the construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance, repair, reinstallation, replacement, relocation and/or removal of the 
Charging Station Facilities,  including, without limitation, zoning, building, health, 
environmental or communication permits or licenses, and shall indemnify the Grantor against 
payment of the costs therefor and against any fines or penalties that may be levied for failure to 
procure or to cure violations thereof.  The Grantor shall take any and all actions or steps 
necessary to cooperate with and assist the Licensee in securing any such permits and licenses. 
 
 
 7. SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
                        7.1 Construction of the Charging Station Facility as shown on Exhibits 1A 
and 1B.  
 
 

8. NON-DISTURBANCE/THIRD PARTY USERS: 
 
 8.1  Except as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, the Grantor shall not 

license, permit or authorize its agents, employees or contractors to disturb or interfere with 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities or the Licensee's rights hereunder, nor shall the Grantor 
deny the Licensee access to the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities.  It is expressly understood 
however, that Grantor has no control over unauthorized third-party users who are, or may be, 
occupying portions of the Grantor’s Property.  Under no circumstances, shall the Grantor be 
liable to the Licensee for unauthorized use of the Charging Station Facilities.  The Grantor will 
cooperate with the Licensee, at the latter's expense, in any actions against third parties 
undertaken by the Licensee as a result of the unauthorized use of the Charging Station Facilities.  
All such activities by the Licensee shall be governed by and subject to the Licensee's 
indemnification of the Grantor pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 4 

 9. LIABILITY/INDEMNITY: 
 
  9.1   The Licensee hereby assumes, releases and agrees to indemnify, defend, 
protect and save the Grantor harmless from and against any loss of and/or damage to the property 
of the Grantor, third parties or the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities and all loss and/or 
damage on account of injury to or death of any persons whomsoever (including employees and 
invitees of the parties hereto and all other persons), arising during the Planning and Design 
Phase, Maintenance and Operating Phase and/or the Installation and Construction Phase and 
throughout the term hereof, caused by or growing out of the plan, design, construction and 
installation, or subsequent operation, maintenance, repair, reinstallation, replacement, relocation 
or removal of the Licensee's Charging Station Facilities, or any part thereof, unless such loss 
and/or damage arises as a direct result of the negligence or willful misconduct of the Grantor. 
 
  9.2  Grantor shall not be liable to Licensee for consequential damages 
including, but not limited to any claim from any client, customer or patron for loss of revenue or 
services arising from any act or omission of Grantor. 
 

9.3   The Licensee further assumes, releases and agrees to indemnify, defend, 
protect and save the Grantor harmless from and against any loss and/or damage to any property 
or facilities of any party (including the Grantor or the Licensee or any persons operating or using 
such facilities) arising from a fire, caused by or growing out of the presence, construction, 
maintenance, use, operation, repair, change relocation or subsequent removal of the Licensee's 
Charging Station Facilities or any part thereof; loss and/or damage being deemed to include cost 
and expense thereof (including reasonable legal fees and court costs) to the extent such loss 
and/or damages are not due to or arise from the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor. 
 

9.4  Grantor shall give Licensee prompt notice of any claims or actions against 
them for which Licensee may be required to indemnify Grantor under this Agreement. In 
addition to Licensee’s liability for any loss that could be sustained by Grantor, Licensee shall be 
responsible for all litigation expense incurred by Grantor, if any, including but not limited to all 
attorneys’ fees payable on a current basis. 
 
 
 10. LIENS: 
 
  10.1  Each party shall keep the other's facilities and property free of all liens 
which arise in any way from or as a result of its activities, and cause any which may arise to be 
discharged or released of record as provided in this article, and shall indemnify and hold the 
other harmless from any and all loss, costs, damages and expenses which the other may incur or 
suffer if such a lien is filed. 
 
  10.2  Nothing herein shall preclude the contest of the lien or contract or action 
upon which the same arose.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in such contest. 
 
  10.3  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to give, and the Grantor 
hereby expressly waives, any claims of ownership in and to any part or the whole of the 



 5 

Licensee's Charging Station Facilities unless otherwise elsewhere provided to the contrary.  
Furthermore, nothing herein shall be deemed to give, and the Licensee hereby expressly waives, 
any claims of ownership in and to any part or the whole of Grantor’s real or personal property. 
 
 
 11. BREACH, REMEDIES: 
 
  11.1  The Licensee and the Grantor each agree that neither shall proceed against 
the other by litigation before the offending party has had written notice of and reasonable time to 
respond and cure such breach or defect; provided, however, neither party shall be required to 
give the other time to respond and cure if any such delay will cause irreparable harm. 
 
  11.2  Remedies available to each party for breach of this Agreement shall 
include: (1) litigation for specific performance; (2) litigation for injunction relief; (3) litigation 
for damages and costs. In no event will either Grantor or the Licensee be responsible to the other 
party for consequential damages. 
 
  11.3  Any waiver by either party at any time of any of its rights as to anything 
herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right or covenant herein or of any 
other matter subsequently occurring. 
 
 
 12. COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES: 

 
12.1  Licensee and Grantor covenants and warrants, respectively, it has full right 

and authority to enter into this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof, and that, by 
entering into and performing this Agreement, it is not in violation of its charter or by-laws, or 
any law, regulation or agreement by which it is bound or to which it is subject.  

 
12.2   Licensee and Grantor covenants and warrants, respectively, that  it, to the 

best of its knowledge, has no litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against it or its 
facilities that would threaten this Agreement, nor has it violated, to its knowledge, any rule, order 
or regulation issued by any applicable governmental authority which might adversely affect the 
other party's interest thereunder or right to make the agreements hereunder, or execute or 
perform this Agreement, and that the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has 
been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action, that the signatories hereto are authorized 
to sign this Agreement. 
 
 

13. RECORDINGS, TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES: 
 
  13.1 If Licensee chooses to record this Agreement, the Licensee shall pay all 
transfer taxes, documentary stamps, recording costs or fees, or any similar expense in connection 
with the recording or filing of this Agreement and shall pay all costs of recording a release upon 
termination.  The Licensee further agrees that if it is determined by any state or local 
governmental authority that the sale, acquisition, license, grant, transfer or disposition of any part 



 6 

or portion of the property or rights herein described requires the payment of any tax (including 
sales or use tax) under any statute, regulation or rule, the Licensee shall pay the same, plus any 
penalty or interest hereon, directly to said taxing authority and shall hold the Grantor harmless 
therefrom.  The Licensee shall pay all annual or periodic taxes levied or assessed upon the 
Licensee's Charging Station Facilities, or on account of their existence or use, and shall 
indemnify the Grantor against the payment thereof. 
 
 

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: 
 
  14.1  The Grantor exercises no control whatsoever over the employment, 
discharge, compensation of or services rendered by the Licensee's employees or contractors, and 
it is the intention of the parties that the Licensee shall be and remain an independent contractor 
and nothing herein shall be construed as inconsistent with that status or as creating or implying 
any partnership or joint venture between the Licensee and the Grantor. 
 
 

15. SUCCESSION/ASSIGNABILITY: 
 
  15.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their respective successors or assigns.  This agreement is assignable by 
Grantor without the consent of Licensee.  Licensee shall not assign this Agreement to any other 
entity or individual without the prior written consent of Grantor. 
 
 
 16. NOTICES: 
 
  16.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and communications 
concerning this Agreement shall be addressed to: 
 
  The Licensee at: (one copy to each) 
 
  Delmarva Power & Light Company 

            2530 North Salisbury Blvd. 
 Salisbury, MD 21801 
 Attention: Manager of Real Estate 
 Email: Steven.Krup@ExelonCorp.com (not sufficient for notice purposes) 

 
Exelon Corporation 
701 Ninth Street NW, 9th Floor  
Washington, DC 20068 
Attn: Constance H. Pierce 
Assistant General Counsel 

 
  The Grantor at: (one copy to each) 
 

mailto:Steven.Krup@ExelonCorp.com


 7 

  The City of Salisbury 
  ATTN:________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
 
or at such other addresses as may be designated in writing to the other party. 
 
  16.2 Unless otherwise provided herein, notices shall be sent by registered or 
certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed served or delivered to addressee, or its 
office, upon the date of return receipt acknowledgment or, if postal claim notice is given, on the 
date of its return marked "unclaimed", provided, however, that upon receipt of a returned notice 
marked "unclaimed", the sending party shall make reasonable effort to contact and notify the 
other party by telephone. 
 

 
17. LEGAL FORUM: 

 
  17.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Maryland. 
 
  17.2 This Agreement shall not be interpreted against either party for the reason 
that the final Agreement was prepared by them. 
 
 
 
    GRANTOR 
 
ATTEST:    THE CITY OF SALISBURY     
     
_______________________   By:       
      Name:       
      Title:       
                 
 
 
                          LICENSEE 
 
ATTEST:     DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
  
_______________________   By:       
      Name:       
      Title:       
 
 
 



 8 

STATE OF MARYLAND, ____________________ COUNTY, TO WIT: 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ____ day of ________________, 2021, before me, a Notary 
Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared ____________________, 
who acknowledged themself to be the _________________ of the City of Salisbury, and that 
they, as such officer, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of 
said corporation for the purposes therein contained. 
 
AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 STATE OF MARYLAND, ____________________ COUNTY, TO WIT: 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ____ day of ________________, 2021, before me, a Notary 
Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared ____________________, 
who acknowledged themself to be the _________________ of Delmarva Power & Light 
Company, and that they, as such officer, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of said corporation for the purposes therein contained. 
 
AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: ______________  
 
 
 



LOAD SIDE

LINE SIDE

SOUTH PARK DRIVE
PUBLIC PARK

SCALE : NONE

Newark, DE - An Exelon Company

500 E MAIN ST., SALISBURY MD 21801
DPL PUBLIC CHARGING EQUIPMENT PLAN

2 LEVEL-2 EVSEEXHIBIT 1A

PLAN VIEWTHIS PLAN IS FOR GENERAL PRESENTATION PURPOSES
ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED, NOR SHOULD BE USED, AS A
SURVEY.  THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN WERE OBTAINED
USING THE MERLIN-MARYLAND ONLINE DATABASE. 
ACCURACY OF INFORMATION CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY LINE

SEE EXHIBIT 1B

DISCLAIMER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
S PARK DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEAVERDAM CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND GRASS CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.930

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.1852

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.1853

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.1854

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.1855

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.1851



LOAD SIDE

LINE SIDE

SOUTH PARK DRIVE
PUBLIC PARK

SCALE : NONE

Newark, DE - An Exelon Company

500 E MAIN ST., SALISBURY MD 21801
DPL PUBLIC CHARGING EQUIPMENT PLAN

2 LEVEL-2 EVSEEXHIBIT 1B

PLAN VIEW
NOT TO SCALE

EXACT CONDUIT ROUTE TO
BE FIELD DETERMINED

LEVEL 2 EVSE

EXISTING PAD MOUNTED
TRANSFORMER

METER PEDESTAL

EXISTING
LIGHTING POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S PARK DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND LEVEL 2 EVSE FOUNDATION METER PEDESTAL FOUNDATION EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN CONDUIT GRASS CONCRETE



ORDINANCE NO. 2705 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE 3 
MAYOR TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR THE MAIN STREET 4 
MASTERPLAN PROJECT. 5 

 6 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury recently constructed utility improvements in Main Street 7 

between Mill Street and Route 13; and 8 
 9 
WHEREAS, during the course of the Main Street Masterplan project, property owners were 10 

provided the opportunity to upgrade their water service to add a fire service; and 11 
 12 
WHEREAS, the City paid the General Contractors for the fire service installation and invoiced the 13 

property owners for the actual cost of the fire service for each property; and 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, Property owners have reimbursed the City for the cost of their individual fire service; 16 

and 17 
 18 
WHEREAS, City desires to use the reimbursed funds to construct the improvements on the final 19 

block of the Main Street Masterplan project, specifically St. Peter’s Street; and 20 
 21 
WHEREAS, the appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of the $45,456.35 of reimbursed 22 

funds, as provided hereinabove, must be made upon the recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of 23 
four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 24 
 25 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 26 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  27 
 28 
 Section 1.  Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to appropriate funds from the fire service 29 
reimbursement account to the Main Street Masterplan Construction account in the amount of $45,456.35. 30 
 31 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 32 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 33 

 34 
Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as 35 

follows: 36 
   37 

Increase 
Decrease 

Account 
Type 

Project 
Description 

Account Description   
Account 

 
Amount 

Increase Revenue None Current Year Surplus 01000-469810 45,456.35 
 
Increase  

 
Expense 

 
None 

Transfer General 
Capital Projects Fund  

 
91001-599109 

 
45,456.35 

 38 
Section 3. The City of Salisbury’s Water Sewer Capital Project Fund Budget be and hereby is 39 

amended as follows: 40 
   41 

Increase 
Decrease 

Account 
Type 

Project 
Description 

 
Account Description  

 
Account 

 
Amount 

 
Increase 

 
Revenue 

MainStreet 
MasterPlan 

Transfer In General 
Fund 

 
98119-469313-48022 

 
45,456.35 

 
Increase 

 
Expense 

MainStreet 
MasterPlan 

 
Construction 

 
98119-513026-48022 

 
45,456.35 

 42 



BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 43 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 44 

 45 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 46 

of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 47 
 48 
Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 49 

section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 50 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 51 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 52 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 53 

 54 
Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 55 

if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 56 
 57 
Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 58 
 59 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 60 
Salisbury held on the 10th day of January, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance 61 
having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City 62 
of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 63 
 64 
ATTEST: 65 
 66 
 67 
 68 
_____________________________            __________________________________ 69 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk                        John R. Heath, City Council President 70 
 71 
 72 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 73 
 74 
 75 
 76 
_____________________________ 77 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 78 
 79 



ORDINANCE NO. 2706 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING AN 3 
AMENDMENT OF THE FY22 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR 4 
STREET RESURFACING AND CONCRETE REPAIR. 5 

 6 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury Department of Infrastructure and Development has completed 7 

paving and concrete repair projects throughout the City that are eligible for reimbursement from MDOT-8 
SHA; and 9 
 10 

WHEREAS, the City has received a reimbursement from MDOT-SHA in the sum of $136,098.79; 11 
and 12 
 13 

WHEREAS, the Department of Infrastructure and Development seeks to reimburse the operating 14 
account from which the original appropriation was budgeted in order to continue the Citywide Paving and 15 
Concrete Programs. 16 
 17 

WHEREAS, the appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of the $136,098.79 of reimbursed 18 
funds, as provided hereinabove, must be made upon the recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of 19 
four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 20 
 21 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 22 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  23 
 24 
 Section 1.  Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to appropriate funds from the MDOT 25 
reimbursement account to the Citywide Street Maintenance account in the amount of $136,098.79. 26 
 27 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 28 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 29 

 30 
Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as 31 

follows: 32 
   33 

Increase 
Decrease 

Account 
Type 

Project 
Description 

Account Description   
Account 

 
Amount 

Increase Revenue None MDOT 
Reimbursements 

01000-424202 $104,310.59 

Increase Revenue None Current Year Surplus 01000-469810 $31,788.20 
Increase  Expense None Citywide Street 

Maintenance 
31000-534318 $136,098.79 

 34 
BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 35 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 36 
 37 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 38 

of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 39 
 40 
Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 41 

section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 42 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 43 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 44 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 45 

 46 



Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 47 
if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 48 

 49 
Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 50 
 51 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 52 
Salisbury held on the 10th day of January, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance 53 
having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City 54 
of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 55 
 56 
ATTEST: 57 
 58 
 59 
 60 
_____________________________            __________________________________ 61 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk             John R. Heath, City Council President 62 
 63 
 64 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 65 
 66 
 67 
 68 
_____________________________ 69 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 70 
 71 



ORDINANCE NO. 2707 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE 3 
MAYOR TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS IN THE FY2022 GENERAL FUND 4 
BUDGET AND AMEND THE AUTHORIZED POSITIONS INCLUDED IN 5 
THE FY22 GENERAL FUND BUDGET. 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury recently determined there is a need to reorganize positions and 8 

change grades assigned to positions; and 9 
  10 
WHEREAS, during the course of the past few months, the City executives have been assessing 11 

and formulating position and grade changes that will be of benefit to the City; and 12 
 13 
WHEREAS, the appropriations below, as provided hereinabove, must be made upon the 14 

recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 15 
 16 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 17 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  18 
 19 

Section 1. The City of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as 20 
follows: 21 
 22 

Increase 
Decrease 

Account  
Type Department 

 
Org  Amount  

 
Increase Expense Business Development  

 
11600 - XXXXXX 30,000 

Increase Expense Human Resource 18500 - XXXXXX 50,000 
Decrease Expense Field Op - Traffic 22000 - XXXXXX 25,000 
Decrease Expense Field Op - Resource Management 30000 - XXXXXX 30,000 
Decrease Expense Field Op - Streets  31150 - XXXXXX 25,000 

 23 
 24 

Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s FY22 Authorized Position Budget and Position Pay Grades be 25 
and hereby is amended according to Schedule A attached. 26 
  27 
BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 28 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 29 

 30 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 31 

of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 32 
Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 33 

section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 34 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 35 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 36 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 37 

Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 38 
if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 39 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 40 
 41 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 42 
Salisbury held on the 10th day of January, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance 43 
having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City 44 
of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 45 



 46 
ATTEST: 47 
 48 
 49 
 50 
_____________________________            __________________________________ 51 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk            John R. Heath, City Council President 52 
 53 
 54 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 55 
 56 
 57 
 58 
_____________________________ 59 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 60 
 61 



Exhibit A

Position Title Division Org

 FY22

Grade

FY22            

Position Count

 Mid Year (Jan)  

Count Change

Mid Year          

New Grade

Business Development 11600 11600 11600

Arts, Business, and Culture Director 11600 11600 14 1

Director of Business Development 11600 11600 12 1

Administrative Assistant I/II/III 11600 11600 5 1

Office Associate II 11600 11600 2 0

Total Business Development 11600 11600 2 1

Human Resources 18500 18500 18500

Human Resources Director 18500 18500 14 1 16

Risk Manager 18500 18500 11 1

Human Resource - Coordinator /Specialist / Administrator 18500 18500 5/9/10 1 8/10/11

Human Resource - Coordinator /Specialist / Administrator 18500 18500 1 8/10/11

Administrative Office Associate 18500 18500 4 0

Administrative Assistant I/II/III 18500 18500 5 1

Office Associate II/III 18500 18500 2/3 0

Total Human Resources 18500 18500 3 2

Transportation 22000 FO 22000

Deputy Director FO 22000 13 1

Transportation Superintendent FO 22000 12 0

Traffic Systems Manager FO 22000 10 1 11

Traffic Manager FO 22000 10 0

Traffic Supervisor FO 22000 8 1 -1

Signal & Lighting Technician I / II / III FO 22000 7/8 1 1

Signs/Pavement Marking Tech I / II FO 22000 2 / 4 2

Total Transportation FO 22000 6 0

Field Operations Administration 30000

Director of Field Operations FO 30000 16 1

Director Public Works FO 30000 17 0

Deputy Director Services FO 30000 13 1 -1

Safety Manager FO 30000 11 0

Risk Manager FO 30000 11 1 -1

Operations and Maintenance Superintendent FO 30000 10 0

Resource Manager FO 30000 8 0

Asset Management and Facilities Specialist FO 30000 7 1 -1

Asset and Facility Manager FO 30000 11 1

Materials Manager FO 30000 3 0

Office Manager I/II/III FO 30000 6 1

Logistics Coordinator FO 30000 5 1

Administrative Assistant I/II/III FO 30000 5 0 1

Administrative Office Associate FO 30000 5 0

Supply/Records Clerk FO 30000 2 0

Total Field Operations Administration FO 30000 6 -1

Utilities Water 82076 FO 82076

Superintendent Utilities FO 82076 12 1

Utility Section Chief FO 82076 8 2

Utility Supervisor FO 82076 7 0

Administrative Assistant I/II/III FO 82076 5 1 -1

Utility Technician I / II / III FO 82076 4/5/6 5

Utility Locator FO 82076 5/6 1

Meter Technician I/II/III FO 82076 3/4 1

Meter Reader I/II FO 82076 3 1

Total Utilities Water FO 82076 12 -1

Total Change 1



Revised Organizational Charts 

Administrative 

Assistant 

Administrative 

Assistant 

Arts, Business and Culture Department  Human Resources 



__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 
 

 Ordinance No. 2708 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL (THE “COUNCIL”) OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY 3 
AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING ORDINANCE NO. 2554, PASSED BY THE COUNCIL 4 
ON AUGUST 26, 2019, APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF CITY OF SALISBURY (THE 5 
“CITY”) ON AUGUST 27, 2019 AND EFFECTIVE ON AUGUST 27, 2019 (“ORDINANCE NO. 6 
2554”), IN ORDER TO (1) AUTHORIZE AND EMPOWER THE CITY TO USE AND APPLY A 7 
PORTION OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE $11,225,000 CITY OF SALISBURY 8 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BONDS OF 2019 ISSUED ON OCTOBER 8, 2019 (THE “2019 9 
BONDS”), TO THE PROJECTS IDENTIFIED HEREIN AS “RAIL TRAIL MASTER PLAN 10 
IMPLEMENTATION” AND “CITY PARK MASTER PLAN IMPROVEMENTS”, AND (2) 11 
IDENTIFY SUCH ADDITIONAL PROJECTS AS “PROJECTS” FOR ALL PURPOSES OF 12 
ORDINANCE NO. 2554; PROVIDING THAT THIS TITLE IS A FAIR STATEMENT OF THE 13 
SUBSTANCE OF THIS ORDINANCE; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN CITY OFFICIALS TO TAKE 14 
CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY 15 
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 16 
BE LIBERALLY CONSTRUED; AND OTHERWISE GENERALLY RELATING TO THE USE 17 
OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2019 BONDS. 18 
 19 

RECITALS 20 

 WHEREAS, City of Salisbury, a municipal corporation of the State of Maryland (the “City”), 21 
is authorized and empowered by Sections 19-301 to 19-309, inclusive, of the Local Government 22 
Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as replaced, supplemented or amended (the “Enabling 23 
Act”), and Sections SC7-45 and SC7-46 of the Charter of the City of Salisbury, as replaced, 24 
supplemented or amended (the “Charter”), to borrow money for any proper public purpose and to 25 
evidence such borrowing by the issuance and sale of its general obligation bonds; and  26 

 27 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections SC7-45 and SC7-46 of 28 
the Charter, and Ordinance No. 2554, passed by the Council of the City (the “Council”) on August 29 
26, 2019, approved by the Mayor of the City (the “Mayor”) on August 27, 2019 and effective on 30 
August 27, 2019 (“Ordinance No. 2554”), the City authorized general obligation bonds to be issued 31 
from time to time in one or more series in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed Twelve Million 32 
Four Hundred Eighty-Two Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy-Seven Dollars ($12,482,977) (the 33 
“Authorized Bonds”) in order to finance, reimburse or refinance “costs” and “Costs of the Projects” 34 
(each as defined in Section 3(b) of Ordinance No. 2554) of the projects identified in the table below 35 
(herein collectively referred to as the “Authorized Projects” and referred to as the “Projects” in 36 
Ordinance No. 2554) in the maximum principal amounts set forth opposite each such Authorized 37 
Project in such Section 3(b): 38 
  39 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 2 - 
 

 40 
  

Project Name 
 

Maximum Principal Amount 
 

1. Roof Replacement Fire Station 11 $   50,000 
2. Water Chiller & Heating and Air Conditioning1 300,000 
3. Main Street Master Plan1 6,740,000 
4. Bicycle Master Plan Implementation1 550,000 
5. Urban Greenway Implementation1 775,000 
6. Wayfinding and Signage1 50,000 
7. Bridge Maintenance and Replacement1 162,000 
8. Street Scaping1 206,000 
9. Zoo Admin Office Space2 100,000 
10. Field Operations Facility Plan – Phase 22 200,000 
11. Field Operations Facility Plan – Phase 32 125,000 
12. Mill Street Bridge Rehabilitation2 45,000 
13. Naylor Mill Road Bridge Replacement2 70,000 
14. Bicycle Master Plan Improvements2 300,000 
15. Urban Greenway Improvements2 200,000 
16. Street Scaping2 200,000 
17. Building Lighting and Controls (ECM 1)3 711,426 
18. Mechanical (ECM 2)3 387,403 
19. Building Management Systems (ECM 3)3 183,237 
20. Building Envelope Improvement (ECM 4)3 105,911 
21. Garage (Bearing Pad Replacement)1 400,000 
22. Parking Garage Structural Repairs2 592,000 
23. Phone System Fire Department 30,000 

  
TOTAL $12,482,977 

1  Project was approved for bond funding in the fiscal year 2019 budget ordinance (Ordinance No. 41 
2482).  42 
2  Project was approved for bond funding in the fiscal year 2020 budget ordinance (Ordinance No. 43 
2539). 44 
3  Projects were approved for bond funding by Ordinance No. 2521.  Projects are further broken 45 
down by project components on Schedule B to Ordinance No. 2521; and 46 
 47 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections SC7-45 and SC7-46 of 48 
the Charter, Ordinance No. 2554 and Resolution No. 2972, adopted by the Council on September 9, 49 
2019, approved by the Mayor on September 9, 2019 and effective on September 9, 2019 (“Resolution 50 
No. 2972”), the City determined to borrow money for the public purpose of financing or 51 
reimbursing “costs” and “Costs of the Projects” (each as defined in Section 2(b) of Resolution No. 52 
2972, which definitions mirror the definitions of  “costs” and “Costs of the Projects” set forth in 53 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 3 - 
 

Section 3(b) of Ordinance No. 2554) of the projects specified in Section 2(a) of Resolution No. 54 
2972 (which included all of the Authorized Projects), and evidenced this borrowing by the issuance 55 
and sale by public sale at competitive bid of a single series of the Authorized Bonds in the original 56 
aggregate principal amount of Eleven Million Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 57 
($11,225,000) and designated as the “City of Salisbury Public Improvement Bonds of 2019” (the 58 
“2019 Bonds”); and 59 

 60 
WHEREAS, due to net original issue premium received by the City in connection with the 61 

sale of the 2019 Bonds, the City was able to reduce the original aggregate par amount of the 2019 62 
Bonds actually issued from the maximum original aggregate par amount of the Authorized Bonds 63 
provided for in Ordinance No. 2554, and thereby to allocate a portion of such net original issue 64 
premium, together with the par amount of the 2019 Bonds, to fund the Authorized Projects in the 65 
maximum aggregate principal amount of $12,482,977 contemplated by Ordinance No. 2554; and  66 

 67 
WHEREAS, the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds, together with net original issue 68 

premium, was originally appropriated and allocated to (i) the Authorized Projects identified in the 69 
table in the second preceding WHEREAS clause above, in the amounts specified in such table (for a 70 
total of $12,482,977), (ii) $85,912.89 to underwriter’s discount, which was retained by Robert W. 71 
Baird & Co. Incorporated, the successful bidder for the 2019 Bonds at the public sale by competitive 72 
bid held therefor, (iii) $45,375 to costs of issuance of other than underwriter’s discount, and (iv) 73 
$4,334.21, representing the rounding amount due to the fact that the 2019 Bonds were issued in 74 
denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof, which rounding amount was to be applied to 75 
additional costs of the Authorized Projects; and 76 
 77 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2571, passed by the Council on January 13, 2020 and 78 
approved by the Mayor on January 21, 2020 (“Ordinance No. 2571”), the City reallocated $1,431 of 79 
the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds originally allocated to the Authorized Project identified as 80 
“Phone System First Department” to the Authorized Project identified as “Roof Replacement Fire 81 
Station 1”; and 82 
 83 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2593, passed by the Council on June 8, 2020 and 84 
approved on June 10, 2020 (“Ordinance No. 2593”), the City contemplated the reallocation of 85 
$750,000 of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds originally allocated to the Authorized Project 86 
identified as “Main Street Master Plan” to the Authorized Project identified as “Street Scaping,” and 87 
provided for such reallocation by subsequent appropriate action; and 88 
 89 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2593, the City also contemplated the reallocation of 90 
$250,000 of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds originally allocated to the Authorized Project 91 
identified as “Main Street Master Plan” to a project not included in Ordinance No. 2554 that is 92 
identified in Ordinance No. 2593 as “Rail Trail Master Plan Implementation;” to date, no proceeds of 93 
the 2019 Bonds have been spent on such additional project; and 94 
 95 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 4 - 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2660, passed by the Council on June 14, 2021 and 96 
approved by the Mayor on June 22, 2021 (“Ordinance No. 2660”), the City contemplated the 97 
reallocation of an aggregate of $1,143,674 of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds originally 98 
allocated to the Authorized Project identified as “Main Street Master Plan” to the following 99 
Authorized Projects in the following amounts:  (i) $475,000 to the Authorized Project identified as 100 
“Bicycle Master Plan Improvements”, (ii) $450,000 to the Authorized Project identified as “Urban 101 
Greenway Improvements,” and (iii) $218,674 to the Authorized Project identified as “Street Scaping,” 102 
and provided for such reallocation by subsequent appropriate action; and 103 
 104 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2660, the City also contemplated the reallocation of 105 
an aggregate of $700,000 of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds originally allocated to the 106 
Authorized Project identified as “Main Street Master Plan” to two projects not included in Ordinance 107 
No. 2554 that are identified in Ordinance No. 2660 as (i) “Rail Trail Master Plan Implementation,” 108 
in the amount of $300,000, and (ii) “City Park Master Plan Improvements, ” in the amount of 109 
$400,000; to date, no proceeds of the 2019 Bonds have been spent on either such additional project; 110 
and 111 
 112 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to (i) Ordinance No. 2596, passed by the Council on June 8, 2020 and 113 
approved on June 10, 2020, the Council allocated $40,000 of interest earnings on proceeds of the 114 
2019 Bonds to the Authorized Project identified as “Zoo Admin Office Space”, and (ii) Ordinance 115 
No. 2682, passed by the Council on September 27, 2021 and approved by the Mayor on October 6, 116 
2021, the Council allocated $64,000 of interest earnings on proceeds of the 2019 Bonds to the 117 
Authorized Project identified as “Zoo Admin Office Space;” and 118 
 119 
 WHEREAS, accordingly, the City desires to expand the list of the Authorized Projects as set 120 
forth in Ordinance No. 2554 in order to allow a portion of the principal amount of the Authorized 121 
Bonds (meaning the 2019 Bonds) to be applied to the two additional projects referred to as the “Rail 122 
Trail Master Plan Implementation” and the “City Park Master Plan Improvements” (collectively, the 123 
“Additional Projects”), and to identify such Additional Projects as “Projects” for all purposes of 124 
Ordinance No. 2554. 125 
 126 
 SECTION 1.  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 127 
THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND that: 128 
 129 
 (a) The Recitals to this Ordinance are incorporated by reference herein and deemed a 130 
substantive part of this Ordinance.  Capitalized terms used in the Sections of this Ordinance that 131 
are not defined therein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Recitals. 132 

 (b) References in this Ordinance to any official by title shall be deemed to refer (i) to any 133 
official authorized under the Charter, the code of ordinances of the City (the “City Code”) or other 134 
applicable law or authority to act in such titled official’s stead during the absence or disability of such 135 
titled official, (ii) to any person who has been elected, appointed or designated to fill such position in 136 
an acting or interim capacity under the Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or authority, 137 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 5 - 
 

(iii) to any person who serves in a “deputy”, “associate” or “assistant” capacity as such an official, 138 
provided that the applicable responsibilities, rights or duties referred to herein have been delegated to 139 
such deputy, associate or assistant in accordance with the Charter, the City Code or other applicable 140 
law or authority, and/or (iv) to the extent an identified official commonly uses another title not 141 
provided for in the Charter or the City Code, the official, however known, who is charged under the 142 
Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or authority with the applicable responsibilities, rights 143 
or duties referred to herein.    144 

 (c) References in this Ordinance to the “principal amount” of any obligations shall be 145 
construed to mean the par amount of such obligations. 146 

 (d) References in the Sections of this Ordinance to Ordinance No. 2554 shall be construed 147 
to mean Ordinance No. 2554 as the allocation of the principal amount of the Authorized Bonds 148 
(meaning the 2019 Bonds) provided for therein has been reallocated prior to the introduction of this 149 
Ordinance pursuant to the previous actions of the City described in the Recitals to this Ordinance. 150 

 SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that: 151 

 (a) Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections SC7-45 and SC7-46 of the 152 
Charter and Ordinance No. 2554, from and after the effective date of this Ordinance, and subject to 153 
Sections 2(d) and 7 hereof, Section 3(b) of Ordinance No. 2554 is hereby deleted in its entirety and 154 
inserted in place thereof shall be the following: 155 
 156 

 “(b) With respect to the projects listed below, the word “costs” as used in 157 
Section 2 hereof shall include, as applicable, costs of the following activities and 158 
expenses:  land and right-of-way acquisition and development; acquisition of other 159 
property rights; site and utility improvements, including, without limitation, grading, 160 
landscaping, paving, sidewalk, curb, gutter, storm water, water and sewer 161 
improvements, and related or similar activities and expenses; demolition, razing and 162 
removal; acquisition, construction, expansion, reconstruction, replacement, 163 
renovation, rehabilitation, improvement, installation, furnishing and equipping 164 
activities and expenses, and related or similar activities and expenses; planning, 165 
design, engineering, architectural, feasibility, surveying, document development, 166 
bidding, permitting, inspection, construction management, financial, administrative 167 
and legal expenses, and related or similar activities and expenses; contingencies; costs 168 
of issuance (which may include costs of bond insurance or other credit or liquidity 169 
enhancement); interest during construction and for a reasonable period thereafter 170 
(whether or not expressly so stated); and any such costs that may represent the City’s 171 
share or contribution to the financing, reimbursement or refinancing of any such 172 
project (collectively, “Costs of the Projects”).  The maximum original aggregate 173 
principal amount of the Bonds (or the BANs, as identified in Section 6 hereof) to be 174 
appropriated or applied to the Costs of the Projects (exclusive of any premium realized 175 
upon sale or investment earnings that may be applied for such purposes) shall be 176 
allocated among the following public purpose projects in the maximum principal 177 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 6 - 
 

amount set forth opposite each, except as otherwise herein provided: 178 
 179 
  

Project Name 
Maximum Principal 

Amount 
 

1. Roof Replacement Fire Station 11 $   51,431 
2. Water Chiller & Heating and Air Conditioning1 300,000 
3. Main Street Master Plan1 3,896,326 
4. Bicycle Master Plan Implementation1 550,000 
5. Urban Greenway Implementation1 775,000 
6. Wayfinding and Signage1 50,000 
7. Bridge Maintenance and Replacement1 162,000 
8. Street Scaping1 206,000 
9. Zoo Admin Office Space2 100,000 
10. Field Operations Facility Plan – Phase 22 200,000 
11. Field Operations Facility Plan – Phase 32 125,000 
12. Mill Street Bridge Rehabilitation2 45,000 
13. Naylor Mill Road Bridge Replacement2 70,000 
14. Bicycle Master Plan Improvements2 775,000 
15. Urban Greenway Improvements2 650,000 
16. Street Scaping2 1,168,674 
17. Building Lighting and Controls (ECM 1)3 711,426 
18. Mechanical (ECM 2)3 387,403 
19. Building Management Systems (ECM 3)3 183,237 
20. Building Envelope Improvement (ECM 4)3 105,911 
21. Garage (Bearing Pad Replacement)1 400,000 
22. Parking Garage Structural Repairs2 592,000 
23. Phone System Fire Department 28,569 
24. Rail Trail Master Plan Implementation4 550,000 
25. City Park Master Plan Improvements5 $400,000 

  
TOTAL $12,482,977 

___________ 180 
1  Project was approved for bond funding in the fiscal year 2019 budget ordinance 181 
(Ordinance No. 2482).  182 
2  Project was approved for bond funding in the fiscal year 2020 budget ordinance 183 
(Ordinance No. 2539). 184 
3  Projects were approved for bond funding by Ordinance No. 2521.  Projects are 185 
further broken down by project components on Schedule B to Ordinance No. 2521.  186 
4  Project was approved for funding from reallocation of par amount of issued bonds 187 
in the fiscal year 2021 budget ordinance (Ordinance No. 2593). 188 
5  Project was approved for funding from reallocation of par amount of issued bonds 189 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 7 - 
 

in the fiscal year 2021 budget ordinance (Ordinance No. 2660). 190 
 191 
The projects identified in items 1-25 above are collectively referred to herein as the 192 
“Projects”.  The Projects described in items 1-25 above are identified by 193 
approximately the same names as such Projects are identified in City budget or other 194 
materials.  The City, without notice to or the consent of any registered owners of the 195 
Bonds (or the registered owners of any of the BANs, as applicable), may reallocate 196 
the maximum principal amount of the Bonds (and of any of the BANs, as applicable) 197 
(exclusive of any premium realized upon sale or investment earnings that may be 198 
applied for such purposes) to be spent on Costs of the Projects among any of the 199 
Projects (including, without limitation, the components of the Projects approved by 200 
Ordinance No. 2521) in compliance with applicable budgetary procedures or 201 
applicable law, including, to the extent applicable, by resolution.  Further, it is the 202 
intention of the Council that proceeds of the Bonds (or of any of the BANs, as 203 
applicable) may be spent on any applicable Costs of the Projects, notwithstanding the 204 
descriptive names used for the Projects in the table above, including, without 205 
limitation, costs related to changes in the scopes of and/or names of the Projects 206 
effected through applicable budgetary procedures or applicable law.” 207 

 208 
 (b) By undertaking the amendments to Section 3(b) of Ordinance No. 2554 provided for 209 
in subsection (a) of this Section 2, the City is in effect adding the Additional Projects identified as 210 
items 24-25 in the table set forth in subsection (a) above to the list of Projects set forth in Section 3(b) 211 
of Ordinance No. 2554 the costs of which may be financed or reimbursed from the principal amount 212 
of the 2019 Bonds, as well as reflecting the reallocation of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds to 213 
certain of the projects that were originally included in Ordinance No. 2554 that are provided for by 214 
Ordinance No. 2571, Ordinance No. 2593 and Ordinance No. 2660.  By adding the Additional 215 
Projects identified in items 24-25 in the table set forth in subsection (a) to the list of Projects set forth 216 
in Section 3(b) of Ordinance No. 2554, the City is also providing authorization for net original issue 217 
premium of the 2019 Bonds and investment earnings on proceeds of the 2019 Bonds to be applied to 218 
costs of such Additional Projects. 219 
  220 
 (c) The projects identified in the table set forth in subsection (a) above (which amends 221 
Section 3(b) of Ordinance No. 2554) are collectively referred to herein as the “Revised Projects.”  222 
Subject to the provisions of subsection (d) below and Section 7 of this Ordinance, from and after the 223 
effective date of this Ordinance, all references to the Projects in Ordinance No. 2554 shall be deemed 224 
to be references to the Revised Projects, as identified in this Ordinance.  Subject to the provisions of 225 
subsection (d) below and Section 7 of this Ordinance, from and after the effective date of this 226 
Ordinance, the provisions of this Section 2 shall supersede the provisions of Section 3(b) of Ordinance 227 
No. 2554 with respect to the application of the principal amount of the Authorized Bonds (meaning 228 
the 2019 Bonds). 229 
 230 
 (d) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 2, no portion of the principal 231 
amount of the 2019 Bonds, the net original issue premium allocated to Costs of the Projects or 232 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 8 - 
 

investment earnings on proceeds of the 2019 Bonds may be applied to costs of the  Additional Projects 233 
unless and until the City adopts a resolution making corresponding amendments to the provisions of 234 
Section 2(a) of Resolution No. 2972 to include the Additional Projects in the list of Projects identified 235 
in Resolution No. 2972, thereby allowing a portion of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds, any 236 
net original issue premium allocated to Costs of the Projects and investment earnings on proceeds of 237 
the 2019 Bonds to be applied to costs of the Additional Projects.   238 
 239 
 SECTION 3.   BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that, subject to the provisions of Section and 240 
7 of this Ordinance, the Mayor, the City Administrator, the Director of Finance and all other 241 
appropriate officials and employees of the City, to the extent acting within the scope of their respective 242 
authority, are hereby authorized and empowered to take any and all action necessary or appropriate 243 
to provide for the application of the proceeds of the 2019 Bonds to finance or reimburse costs of the  244 
Revised Projects and to approve, execute and deliver all documents, certificates or instruments 245 
necessary or appropriate in connection therewith or in connection with the transactions contemplated 246 
by this Ordinance, including, without limitation, any amendments, modifications or supplements to 247 
any documents, certificates or instruments delivered in connection with the 2019 Bonds. 248 
 249 
 SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that from and after the effective date of this 250 
Ordinance, Ordinance No. 2554 shall be deemed amended and supplemented as provided herein and 251 
all other terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 2554 shall remain in full force and effect.   252 
 253 
 SECTION 5.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the title of this Ordinance shall be deemed 254 
to be, and is, a fair statement of the substance of this Ordinance for posting and all other purposes. 255 
 256 
 SECTION 6.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be 257 
liberally construed in order to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. 258 
 259 
 SECTION 7.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall become effective 260 
following approval by the Mayor or subsequent passage by the Council following the Mayor’s veto 261 
in accordance with the provision of Section SC2-12 of the Charter; provided, however, that 262 
notwithstanding the effective date of this Ordinance, in the event the City fails to adopt a resolution 263 
making corresponding amendments to the provisions of Section 2(a) of Resolution No. 2972 to allow 264 
a portion of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds, any net original issue premium allocated to Costs 265 
of the Projects and investment earnings on proceeds of the 2019 Bonds to be applied to costs of the 266 
Additional Projects, the City may not apply any portion of the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds, 267 
any portion of net original issue premium allocated to Costs of the Projects or any portion of 268 
investment earnings on proceeds of the 2019 Bonds to costs of the Additional Projects identified 269 
herein as “Rail Trail Master Plan Implementation” or “City Park Master Plan Improvements.”  270 
Pursuant to Charter Section SC2-16, this Ordinance shall not be subject to petition to referendum.   271 
 272 
 273 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 274 
  275 



 
 

__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 9 - 
 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury 276 
held on the 10th day of January, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of this Ordinance 277 
having been posted or published as required by law, was finally passed by the Council __________ 278 
[as introduced]  ___________ [as amended] [CHECK APPLICABLE LINE] on the 279 
_______________ day of ______________________, 2022. 280 
 281 
 282 
ATTEST: 283 
 284 
 285 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  286 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, President 287 
       Salisbury City Council 288 
 289 
APPROVED BY ME THIS _________ DAY OF ___________________, 2022: 290 
 291 
 292 
___________________________________ 293 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor          294 
 295 
 296 
 297 
 298 
 299 
 300 
 301 
#223944;58111.001 302 





ORDINANCE NO. 2709 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE 3 
MAYOR TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR A DUMP TRUCK AND MINI 4 
EXCAVATOR BOTH PREVIOUSLY FUNDED WITH FEDERAL 5 
RECOVERY FUNDS.  6 

 7 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury appropriated funds to purchase a Dump Truck and Mini 8 

Excavator using Federal Recovery (ARP) Funds in Ordinance 2660 FY22 Budget; and 9 
 10 
WHEREAS, during the course reviewing new details on how ARP funds can be used, the City’s 11 

Finance Department determined PayGO would be a better source of funding for the Dump Truck and Mini 12 
Excavator; and  13 

 14 
WHEREAS, the City found $140,065 in PayGO funds for other projects that were available to 15 

reallocate for the Dump Truck and Mini Excavator; and 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, the total funds required for the two items is $245,000 leaving an additional $104,935 18 

required to replace the ARP Funds; and  19 
 20 
WHEREAS, the new appropriations necessary to execute the new funds from surplus of $104,935 21 

and the reallocated funds of $140,065, as provided hereinabove, must be made upon the recommendation 22 
of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 23 
 24 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 25 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  26 
 27 
 Section 1.  Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to appropriate funds from the fire service 28 
reimbursement account to the Main Street Masterplan Construction account in the amount of $65,427.21. 29 
 30 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 31 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 32 

 33 
Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s FY22 Water Sewer Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as 34 

follows:  See Schedule A attached. 35 
   36 

 37 
Section 3. The City of Salisbury’s Water Sewer Capital Project Fund Budget be and hereby is 38 

amended as follows:   39 
 40 

Increase 
Decrease 

Rev 
Exp  Account  Project  Amount  

Additional PayGO to replace the Federal Recovery Funds: 
Increase  Rev 60100   Current Surplus NA     104,935  
Increase  Exp 91002 599108  Trf W S Cap Projects  NA     104,935  

 41 
  42 



 43 
  BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 44 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 45 

Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 46 
of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 47 

Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 48 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 49 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 50 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 51 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 52 

Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 53 
if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 54 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 55 
 56 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 57 
Salisbury held on the _______ day of ______________, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance 58 
of the Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the 59 
Council of the City of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 60 
 61 
ATTEST: 62 
 63 
 64 
 65 
_____________________________            __________________________________ 66 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk            John R. Heath, City Council President 67 
 68 
 69 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 70 
 71 
 72 
 73 
_____________________________ 74 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 75 
  76 



Schedule A – Water Sewer Capital Project Fund  77 
 78 
 79 
 80 
 81 
 82 
 83 
 84 
 85 
 86 
 87 
 88 
 89 
 90 
 91 
 92 
 93 
 94 
 95 
 96 
 97 
 98 
 99 
 100 
 101 
 102 
 103 
 104 
 105 
 106 
 107 
 108 
 109 
 110 
 111 
 112 
 113 
 114 
 115 
 116 
 117 
 118 

Increase
Decrease

Rev
Exp Project Amount

Decrease Rev 96016 469313 60006 Pay Go Funds OminiSi te for Li ft Stat 44,000      
Decrease Exp 96116 577030 60006 Equipment OminiSi te for Li ft Stat 44,000      

Decrease Rev 96017 469313 50027 Pay Go Funds Park WTP High Serv Pum 32,360      
Decrease Exp 96217 513026 50027 Construction Park WTP High Serv Pum 32,360      

Decrease Rev 96017 469313 60006 Pay Go Funds OminiSi te for Li ft Stat 44,800      
Decrease Exp 96217 577030 60006 Equipment OminiSi te for Li ft Stat 44,800      

Decrease Rev 97030 469314 49000 PayGO - PrevYr Dis infection Byproducts 13,500      
Decrease Exp 97030 513020 49000 Engineering Dis infection Byproducts 13,500      

Decrease Rev 97030 469314 49010 PayGO - PrevYr Mi l l  Street Pump Statio 5,405        
Decrease Exp 97030 513026 49010 Construction Mi l l  Street Pump Statio 5,405        

Decrease Rev 96022 456450 48045 Federa l  Recovery FuDump Truck 185,000    
Decrease Exp 96122 577025 48045 Vehicles  Dump Truck 185,000    

Decrease Rev 96022 456450 55024 Federa l  Recovery FuMini  Excavator w Tra i ler 60,000      
Decrease Exp 96122 577030 55024 Equipment Mini  Excavator w Tra i ler 60,000      

Increase Rev 96022 469313 55024 PayGO Mini  Excavator w Tra i ler 60,000      
Increase Exp 96122 577030 55024 Equipment Mini  Excavator w Tra i ler 60,000      

Increase Rev 96022 469313 48045 PayGO Dump Truck 44,935      
Increase Exp 96122 577025 48045 Vehicles  Dump Truck 44,935      

Increase Rev 96016 469313 48045 PayGO Dump Truck 44,000      
Increase Exp 96116 577025 48045 Vehicles  Dump Truck 44,000      

Increase Rev 96017 469313 48045 PayGO Dump Truck 77,160      
Increase Exp 96117 577025 48045 Vehicles  Dump Truck 77,160      

Increase Rev 97030 469313 48045 PayGO Dump Truck 18,905      
Increase Exp 97030 577025 48045 Vehicles  Dump Truck 18,905      

Account 

Remove Projects funded from Federal Recover Funds: 

Reduce funds no longer requied so they can be reallocated: 

Allocate new PayGO 

Allocate funds reallocated 





ORDINANCE NO. 2710 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE 3 
CHIEF OF POLICE TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF 4 
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND TO ACCEPT 5 
FUNDING FROM THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF CRIME PREVENTION, 6 
YOUTH AND VICTIM SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000, AND TO 7 
AMEND THE GRANT FUND BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE THESE GRANT 8 
FUNDS FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THE ‘EXPLORING PREDICTIVE 9 
POLICING WITH MACHINE LEARNING’ PROJECT. 10 

 11 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s Office of Crime Prevention, Youth and Victim Services has funding 12 

available through the Exploring Predictive Policing with Machine Learning program; and 13 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the grant program is to develop computer software to analyze crime data 14 
and predict the re-occurrence of similar criminal activity based on analytical input sourced from city GIS and 15 
the Salisbury Police Department; and 16 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury and the University of Maryland were invited by GOCPYVS to 17 
participate in this endeavor as a continuation of the MCIN Grant Project for Machine Leaning; and 18 

WHEREAS, the GOCPYVS has allocated funds in the amount of $100,000 for the University of 19 
Maryland for salary support related to research; and 20 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury must enter into a grant agreement with the University of Maryland 21 
defining how the funds must be expended as well as the sharing of analytical data; and 22 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the project is to assist in predicting local crime patterns in order to 23 
ultimately reduce crime in the City of Salisbury; and 24 

WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter prohibits the City from entering into a contract that 25 
requires an expenditure not appropriated or authorized by the Council of the City of Salisbury; and 26 

WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of this grant must be made upon the 27 
recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 28 

 29 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 30 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  31 
 32 

 Section 1.  Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to enter into a grant agreement with the 33 
Governor’s Office of Crime Prevention, Youth and Victim Services on behalf of the City of Salisbury, for the 34 
City’s acceptance of grant funds in the amount of $100,000, so that those funds may be utilized by the 35 
University of Maryland for the continuation of the Exploring Predictive Policing with Machine Learning 36 
project.  37 
 38 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 39 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 40 

 41 
Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s Grant Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as follows: 42 
(a)   Increase Bryne Memorial JAG Revenue Account No. 10500–423101–XXXXX by $100,000. 43 
(b)   Increase SPD Consulting Fees Expense Account No. 10500–513400–XXXXX by $100,000. 44 
 45 



BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 46 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 47 

Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of 48 
this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 49 

Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 50 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional 51 
or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the 52 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall 53 
remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 54 

Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if 55 
such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 56 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 57 
 58 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 59 
Salisbury held on the _______ day of ______________, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of 60 
the Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of 61 
the City of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 62 
 63 
ATTEST: 64 
 65 
 66 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 67 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 68 
 69 
 70 
 71 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 72 
 73 
 74 
 75 
_____________________________ 76 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 77 
 78 
 79 



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: John W. Tull, Fire Chief 

Subject: Budget Amendment for Position Authorizations 

Date: January 6, 2022 

As you are aware, the current Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant 

performance period will end on February 28, 2022.  During the FY22 Budget process, funding was 

appropriated to retain the twelve SAFER grant funded positions as full-time employees with the 

City of Salisbury Fire Department when this grant ended.  In addition to retaining these twelve 

positions, the Fire Department is requesting approval to reclassify several positions in an effort to 

provide career ladder opportunities and to build the strongest team possible. 

 

Attached you will find an Ordinance requesting the approval of a budget amendment of the FY2022 

General Fund budget and the Department’s Authorized Position allocations.  Thank you in advance 

for your time and consideration on this request.  Unless you or the Mayor have further questions, 

please forward a copy of this memo and ordinance to the City Council for their consideration. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2711 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING A 3 
BUDGET AMENDMENT OF THE FY2022 GENERAL FUND BUDGET 4 
AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO AMEND THE AUTHORIZED 5 
POSITIONS INCLUDED IN THE FY22 GENERAL FUND BUDGET. 6 
 7 

WHEREAS, the Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant for the City 8 
of Salisbury will end on February 28, 2022; and 9 

  10 
WHEREAS, funding was appropriated in the FY2022 General Fund Budget to retain the twelve 11 

SAFER Grant funded positions as full time employees; and 12 
 13 
WHEREAS, the Fire Department has determined the need to reclassify several positions within 14 

the Department; and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, there are insufficient funds available in the FY22 Fire Department Budget to 17 

fund the position reclassifications; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the position appropriations below, as provided hereinabove, must be made upon the 20 

recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 21 
 22 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 23 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  24 
 25 

Section 1. The City of Salisbury’s Fiscal Year 2021 General Fund Budget be and is hereby 26 
amended as follows: 27 

(a) Increase the Current Year Surplus Account (01000-469810) by 28 
$17,980.00 29 

(b) Increase the Salisbury Fire Department’s Salaries Non-Clerical Account 30 
(24035-501002) by $17,980.00 31 

 32 
Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s FY22 Authorized Position Budget be and hereby is amended as 33 

follows: 34 

 35 



 BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 36 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 37 

 38 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 39 

of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 40 
 41 
Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 42 

section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 43 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 44 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 45 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 46 

 47 
Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 48 

if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 49 
 50 
Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 51 
 52 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 53 
Salisbury held on the _______ day of ______________, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance 54 
of the Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the 55 
Council of the City of Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2022. 56 
 57 
 58 
ATTEST: 59 
 60 
 61 
 62 
_____________________________            __________________________________ 63 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk            John R. Heath, City Council President 64 
 65 
 66 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 67 
 68 
 69 
_____________________________ 70 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 71 
 72 


	Agenda
	12.13.21 Council Meeting Minutes
	Ethics Commission Appt
	Poplar Hill Re-appt
	Manufacturing Exemption Requests
	Award of Bids
	Res 3147
	Res 3148
	Ord 2703 2R
	Ord 2704 2R
	Ord 2705 2R
	Ord 2706 2R
	Ord 2707 2R
	Ord 2708 2R
	Ord 2709
	Ord 2710
	Ord 2711

